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Independent Auditor’s Report 

(111) Ministry of Finance approved No.21004946 

 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated states of Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company 

Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of 

December 31,2021 and 2020, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in 

equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies.  
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, according to our audit 

result and audit reports from other accountants(please refer to “Others” section),the consolidated financial 

position of the Group as of December 31,2021 and 2020,and its consolidated financial performance and 

its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing 

the Preparation of Financial Reports by the Securities Issuers and the International Reporting 

Standards(IRFS), International Accounting Standards(IAS), IFRIC Interpretations(IFRIC), and SIC 

Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issues into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the 

Republic of China.  
 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of 

Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in the 

Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statement section of our report. We are 

independent of the Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant 

of the Republic of China and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion.  

 

Key Audit Matters December 31, 2021 and 2020, 

Key audit matters are those materials that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
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Key audit matters for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 

2021 are stated as follows:  

 

Cut-off date for international export income 

Notes 

With regard to the accounting policy on income recognition, please refer to Note 4 (29) of the 

consolidated financial report. 

The Group mainly focused on the manufacturing and trading of related products for vehicle transmission 

parts. The main source of sales income is international export sales. Sales to customers involve different types 

of trading conditions. However, the Group recognize the sales revenue immediately after shipment. At the end 

of each period, ownership of the products that has not been transferred to the buyer due to the failure of the 

agreed trading conditions and the control of the product has not been transferred to the buyer. Because the 

data collection that does not meet the sales revenue recognition conditions involves a high degree of manual 

judgment and operation, the accountant has included the cut-off date of the export sales revenue as a significant 

review item. 

Corresponding verification procedures 

The accountants respond to above notes and take procedures for the specific aspects and procedures are 

summarized as follows: 

1. Understand and evaluate the operating procedures and internal controls of the Company sales 

transactions, and test the controls. 

2. Perform a cut-off test for sales transactions within a certain period before and after the end of the 

financial report, and confirm that revenue is recognized in the appropriate period. 

Inventory allowance falling price and sluggish loss evaluation 

Notes 
With regard to inventory accounting policies, please refer to Note 4 (14) of the consolidated financial report. For 

important accounting estimates and assumptions for inventory evaluation, please refer to Note 5 (2) of the 

consolidated financial report. Please refer to Note 6 (6) of the consolidated financial report for the description of 

the inventory allowance loss. The Group’s inventory and inventory allowance losses as of December 31, 2021 were 

NT$3,161,905 thousand and NT$105,119 thousand, respectively.
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The Group is mainly engaged in the manufacturing and trading of automotive transmission parts related 

products. Due to the fierce competition in the automotive transmission parts market, there is a high risk of 

inventory falling-price loss or outdated price loss. The inventories of the Group are measured by cost and net 

realizable value. For inventories that are older than a certain period of age and those that are respectively 

identified as obsolete, provision is made for depreciation losses based on the degree of inventory depletion. 

The net realizable value used to evaluate obsoleteness often involves subjective judgments and therefore a 

high degree of uncertainty in estimation exists. Considering the Group's inventory and its allowance for 

depreciation losses have a significant impact on the financial statements. The accountant believes that the 

Group's inventory depreciation loss evaluation is one of the most important items in this year's audit.  

 

Corresponding verification procedures 

The accountants respond to above notes and take procedures for the specific aspects and procedures are 

summarized as follows: 

1. Understand and evaluate the inventory allowance for depreciation losses, the operating procedures and 

internal controls mentioned. And then test the controls. 

2. Review the annual inventory-check plan and participate in the annual inventory check to evaluate the 

management’s control of outdated inventory. 

3. The policy for the provision of allowances for inventory evaluation losses is consistently adopted and 

the rationality of the provision policy is evaluated during the period of comparing the financial 

statements. 

4. Obtain the inventory age reports to check the inventory items to test the accuracy of the inventory age 

calculation logic and information. 

5. Regarding the estimated net realizable value of the inventory items, discuss with the management 

and obtain supporting documents, and then evaluate the rationality of the inventory allowance 

evaluation loss. 

Other matters-adopting other accountant’s audit reports 

The Group’s consolidated financial statements adopt equity method for investee companies whose 

financial statements have not been checked by this accountant, but by other accountants. Therefore, in the 

opinions expressed by this accountant on the above consolidated financial statements, the amounts listed in 

the financial statements of these companies are based on the audit reports of other accountants. The amount 

of investment using the equity method on December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 were NT$314,127 

thousand and 319,885 thousand, respectively, accounting for 1.49% and 1.74% of the total assets respectively. 

From January 1st to December 31st 2021 and from January 1st to December 31st 2020, the comprehensive profits 

recognized by the equity method were NT$19,378 thousand in losses and NT$2,398 thousand in losses, 

respectively, each accounting for 5.93% and 0.78% of comprehensive profit and loss. 
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Other matters – individual financial reports 

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited has prepared its financial statements for the years ended 

December 31, 2021 and 2020, and we have issued an unqualified audit report thereon for your information.  

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 

Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities 

Issuers and the IRFS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory 

Commission of the Republic of China ,and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 

to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparation the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. When applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with governance (including members of the audit Committee) are responsible for 

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.  

 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our Objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, the could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, 

we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also  

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control.  
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2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the Group’s internal control.  

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to the events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ 

report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 

to continue as a going concern.  

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain 

solely responsible for our audit opinion.  

We communicate with those charged with governance departments, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during the audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements and communicated with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 

thought to bear our independence and related safeguards when applicable. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 

of significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,2021 and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter should not communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

 

P r i c e w a t e r h o u s e C o o p e r s  T a i w a n 

 

Wu, Song-yuan 

CPA                                   

Xu, Jian-ye   

 

Financial Supervisory Commission 

Approved-certified No.: 1090350620Financial Supervisory  

             1050035683              

March 16, 2022March 16, 2022March 16, 

2022March 16, 2022 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance sheet 

2021 and 2020 December 31 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 

     December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

 ASSETS  NOTE  Amount   %   Amount   %  

 CURRENT ASSETS                 

1100 Cash and cash equivalents  6(1)  $ 947,910   4   $ 795,667   4  

1120 Financial assets at fair value through 

other comprehensive income – 

current 

 6(2) 

  126,799   1    120,506   1  

1136 Financial assets at amortized cost – 

current 

 6(3), 8 

  33,872   -    89,557   -  

1150 Notes receivable  6(4)   50,462   -    18,537   -  

1170 Accounts receivable  6(4), 7(2)   2,641,013   13    2,215,079   12  

1200 Other receivables  6(5)   121,713   1    113,358   1  

130X Inventories  6(6)   3,056,786   14    1,898,027   10  

1470 Other current assets     265,115   1    158,726   1  

11XX Total current assets     7,243,670   34    5,409,457   29  

 NONCURRENT ASSETS                 

1517 Financial assets at fair value through 

other comprehensive income –

noncurrent 

 6(2) 

  59,513   -    64,416   -  

1535 Financial assets at amortized cost – 

noncurrent 

 6(3), 8 

  32   -    32   -  

1550 Investments accounted for using 

equity method 

 6(7), 8 

  318,564   2    323,357   2  

1600 Property, plant and equipment  6(8), 8   12,765,015   61    11,540,853   63  

1755 Right-of-use assets  6(9)   304,088   1    317,045   2  

1760 Investment property, net  6(11)   30,387   -    -   -  

1780 Intangible assets     6,693   -    7,034   -  

1840 Deferred income tax assets  6(30)   62,159   -    63,343   -  

1900 Other noncurrent assets  6(12), 8   313,498   2    625,638   4  

15XX Total noncurrent assets     13,859,949   66    12,941,718   71  

1XXX TOTAL    $ 21,103,619   100   $ 18,351,175   100  
 

(continue in next page)
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance sheet 

2021 and 2020 December 31 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

     December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  Note  Amount   %   Amount   %  

 CURRENT LIABILITIES                 
2100 Short-term borrowings  6(13)  $ 1,320,339   6   $ 2,088,753   11  
2110 Short - term notes and bills payable  6(14)   1,260,000   6    600,000   3  
2130 Current contract liabilities     244   -    -   -  
2150 Notes payable     921,500   5    431,512   2  
2170 Accounts payable     1,104,467   5    578,527   3  
2200 Other payables  6(15), 7(2)   864,227   4    437,713   3  
2230 Income tax payable  6(30)   65,160   -    42,974   -  
2280 Lease liabilities – current  6(9), 7(2)   19,083   -    18,363   -  
2320 Long-term liabilities due within one 

year or business cycle 
 6(16) 

  1,159,609   6    2,156,481   12  
2399 Other current liabilities     18,749   -    71,967   1  
21XX Total current liabilities     6,733,378   32    6,426,290   35  

 NONCURRENT LIABILITIES                 
2540 Long-term loans  6(16)   5,173,125   25    5,042,695   28  
2570 Deferred income tax liabilities  6(30)   46,666   -    54,357   -  
2580 Lease liabilities – noncurrent  6(9), 7(2)   247,554   1    257,476   1  
2600 Other noncurrent liabilities  6(18)   158,768   1    163,314   1  
25XX Total noncurrent liabilities     5,626,113   27    5,517,842   30  
2XXX Total liabilities     12,359,491   59    11,944,132   65  

 EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO 

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE 

PARENT 

  

              

 Capital stock  6(20)               
3110 Common stock     2,795,175   13    2,545,175   14  

 Capital surplus  6(21)               
3200 Capital surplus     3,833,804   18    1,906,479   10  

 Retained earnings  6(22)               
3310 Appropriated as legal capital reserve     689,651   4    660,162   4  
3320 Appropriated as special capital 

reserve 
  

  48,236   -    48,236   -  
3350 Unappropriated earnings     1,316,593   6    1,227,622   7  

 Others  6(23)               
3400 Others   (  60,354 )  -  (  35,116 )  -  
31XX Equity attributable to 

shareholders of the parent 
  

  8,623,105   41    6,352,558   35  
36XX NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS     121,023   -    54,485   -  
3XXX Total equity     8,744,128   41    6,407,043   35  

 Significant Contingent Liabilities and 

Unrecognized Contractual 

Commitments 

 9 

              
3X2X Total liabilities and equities    $ 21,103,619   100   $ 18,351,175   100  

 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
and should be read in conjunction with these consolidated financial statements. 

 
 Chairman：Shen, Guo-rong Manager：Chen, Jun-zhi Chief accountant：Chen, Chang-yuan 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

2021 and 2020 January 1 to December 31 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

(Except for earnings per share of New Taiwan dollars) 
 

     2021   2020  

ITEM  NOTE  Amount   %   Amount   %  

4000 OPERATING REVENUE  6(24), 7(2)  $ 6,686,364   100   $ 5,211,042   100  

5000 COST OF REVENUE  6(6)(29), 7(2) (  5,004,701 ) ( 75 ) (  4,038,224 ) ( 78 ) 

5900 GROSS PROFIT     1,681,663   25    1,172,818   22  

 Operating expenses  6(29)               

6100 Sales and marketing expenses   (  902,982 ) ( 13 ) (  476,031 ) ( 9 ) 

6200 General and administrative 

expenses 

  

(  209,169 ) ( 3 ) (  185,456 ) ( 4 ) 

6300 Research and development   (  113,808 ) ( 2 ) (  108,631 ) ( 2 ) 

6450 Expected credit losses  12(2) (  4,072 )  -  (  6,089 )  -  

6000 Total operating expenses   (  1,230,031 ) ( 18 ) (  776,207 ) ( 15 ) 

6900 INCOME FROM OPERATIONS     451,632   7    396,611   7  

 NON- OPERATING INCOME 

AND EXPENSES 

  

              

7100 Interest income  6(25)   949   -    4,803   -  

7010 Other income  6(26)   101,135   1    110,810   2  

7020 Other gains and losses  6(27) (  59,227 ) ( 1 ) (  78,516 ) ( 1 ) 

7050 Finance costs  6(28) (  89,916 ) ( 1 ) (  108,291 ) ( 2 ) 

7060 Share of profits of associates  6(7) (  773 )  -  (  1,369 )  -  

7000 Total non-operating income 

and expenses 

  

(  47,832 ) ( 1 ) (  72,563 ) ( 1 ) 

7900 INCOME BEFORE INCOME 

TAX 

  

  403,800   6    324,048   6  

7950 INCOME TAX EXPENSE  6(30) (  63,157 ) ( 1 ) (  38,488 )  -  

8200 NET INCOME    $ 340,643   5   $ 285,560   6  

 

 

(continue in next page) 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

2021 and 2020 January 1 to December 31 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

(Except for earnings per share of New Taiwan dollars) 
     2021   2020  

ITEM  NOTE  Amount   %   Amount   %  

 Other comprehensive income (loss), 

net 
  

              

 Items that will not be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss: 
  

              

8311 Remeasurement of defined benefit 

obligation 
 6(18) 

 $ 5,784   -   $ 1,667   -  

8316 Unrealized gain on investments in 

equity instruments at fair value 

through other comprehensive 

income 

 6(2) 

  1,677   -    16,638   -  

8320 Share of other comprehensive loss 

of associates 
 6(7)(23) 

(  19,202 )  -    4,416   -  

8349 Income tax benefit (expense) related 

to items that will not be reclassified 

subsequently 

 6(30) 

(  1,147 )  -  (  348 )  -  

8310 Total items not reclassified to 

profit or loss 
  

(  12,888 )  -    22,373   -  

 Items that may be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss: 
  

              

8361 Exchange differences arising on 

translation of foreign operations 
 6(23) 

(  8,129 )  -  (  8,149 )  -  

8367 Unrealized gain on investments in 

debt instruments at fair value 

through other comprehensive 

income 

 6(23) 

  1,514   -    10,321   -  

8370 Share of other comprehensive loss 

of associates 
 6(7)(23) 

  4,031   -  (  4,324 )  -  

8399 Income tax benefit (expense) related 

to items that will be reclassified 

subsequently 

 6(30) 

  1,383   -    2,227   -  

8360 Total amount of items that may be 

reclassified to profit or loss in the 

future 

  

(  1,201 )  -    75   -  

8300 Other comprehensive income, net of 

tax 
  

( $ 14,089 )  -   $ 22,448   -  

8500 Total comprehensive income    $ 326,554   5   $ 308,008   6  

 NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE 

TO: 
  

              

8610 Shareholders of the parent    $ 341,823   5   $ 286,094   6  

8620 Non-controlling interests   (  1,180 )  -  (  534 )  -  

 Total    $ 340,643   5   $ 285,560   6  

 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 
  

              

8710 Shareholders of the parent    $ 328,016   5   $ 308,010   6  

8720 Non-controlling interests   (  1,462 )  -  (  2 )  -  

 Total    $ 326,554   5   $ 308,008   6  

            

 Basic earnings per share  6(31)         

9750 Total    $ 1.23   $ 1.12  

 Diluted earnings per share  6(31)         

9850 Total Diluted earnings per share    $ 1.23   $ 1.12  

 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 

and should be read in conjunction with these consolidated financial statements. 

 
 Chairman：Shen, Guo-rong Manager：Chen, Jun-zhi Chief accountant：Chen, Chang-yuan 

 



~14~ 

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 

2021 and 2020 January 1 to December 31 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 

   Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Parent     
       Retained Earnings  Others         

 

Note 

 

Common Stock 

 

Capital Surplus 

 

Legal Capital 

Reserve 

 

Special Capital 

Reserve 

 

Unappropriated 

Earnings 

 

Foreign Currency 

Translation Reserve 

 Unrealized Gain 

(Loss) on Financial 

Assets at Fair Value 

Through Other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

 

Treasury Stock 

 

Total 

 

Non-controlling 

Interests 

 

Total Equity 

 
2020                                              
  BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2020    $ 2,549,565    $ 1,916,204    $ 593,292    $ 23,850    $ 1,533,901   ( $ 32,179 )  ( $ 16,057 )   $ -    $ 6,568,576    $ 56,352    $ 6,624,928  
  Net income    -    -    -    -    286,094    -    -    -    286,094   ( 534 )   285,560  
  Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax 6(23)   -    -    -    -    1,360   ( 10,242 )   30,798    -    21,916    532    22,448  
  Total comprehensive income in 2020    -    -    -    -    287,454   ( 10,242 )   30,798    -    308,010   ( 2 )   308,008  
  Appropriations of earnings in 2019 6(22)                                             
    Legal capital reserve    -    -    66,870    -   ( 66,870 )   -    -    -    -    -    -  
    Special capital reserve    -    -    -    24,386   ( 24,386 )   -    -    -    -    -    -  
    Common stock and cash dividends to shareholders    -    -    -    -   ( 509,913 )   -    -    -   ( 509,913 )   -   ( 509,913 ) 
  Share-based payment transaction 6(19)(21)   -    20,895    -    -    -    -    -    -    20,895    -    20,895  
  Disposal of investments in equity instruments at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 
6(23) 

  -    -    -    -    7,436    -   ( 7,436 )   -    -    -    -  
  Treasury stock repurchase 6(20)   -    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 35,010 )  ( 35,010 )   -   ( 35,010 ) 
  Decrease in treasury stock 6(20)  ( 4,390 )  ( 30,620 )   -    -    -    -    -    35,010    -    -    -  
  The investee company distributes cash dividends    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 1,865 )  ( 1,865 ) 
 BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2020    $ 2,545,175    $ 1,906,479    $ 660,162    $ 48,236    $ 1,227,622   ( $ 42,421 )   $ 7,305    $ -    $ 6,352,558    $ 54,485    $ 6,407,043  
2021                                              
  BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2021    $ 2,545,175    $ 1,906,479    $ 660,162    $ 48,236    $ 1,227,622   ( $ 42,421 )   $ 7,305    $ -    $ 6,352,558    $ 54,485    $ 6,407,043  
  Net income    -    -    -    -    341,823    -    -    -    341,823   ( 1,180 )   340,643  
  Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax    -    -    -    -    5,160   ( 2,715 )  ( 16,252 )   -   ( 13,807 )  ( 282 )  ( 14,089 ) 
  Total comprehensive income in 2021 6(23)   -    -    -    -    346,983   ( 2,715 )  ( 16,252 )   -    328,016   ( 1,462 )   326,554  
  Appropriations of earnings in 2020 6(21)(22)                                             
    Special capital reserve    -    -    29,489    -   ( 29,489 )   -    -    -    -    -    -  
    Common stock and cash dividends to shareholders    -   ( 72,675 )   -    -   ( 234,794 )   -    -    -   ( 307,469 )   -   ( 307,469 ) 
  Cash capital increase 6(20)   250,000    2,000,000    -    -    -    -    -    -    2,250,000    -    2,250,000  
  Disposal of investments in equity instruments at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 
6(23) 

  -    -    -    -    6,271    -   ( 6,271 )   -    -    -    -  
  Non-controlling interests    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    68,000    68,000  
  BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2021    $ 2,795,175    $ 3,833,804    $ 689,651    $ 48,236    $ 1,316,593   ( $ 45,136 )  ( $ 15,218 )   $ -    $ 8,623,105    $ 121,023    $ 8,744,128  

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with these consolidated financial 

statements. 
 Chairman：Shen, Guo-rong Manager：Chen, Jun-zhi Chief accountant：Chen, Chang-yuan  
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

2021 and 2020 January 1 to December 31 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

  

NOTE 

 January 1 to 

December 31, 2021 

   January 1 to 

December 31, 2020  

            

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES            

Income before income tax    $ 403,800    $ 324,048  

Adjustments for:            

Provided by (used in) operating activities:            

Depreciation - Property  6(8)(29)   559,415     599,821  

Depreciation - Right-of-use assets  6(9)(29)   15,592     23,262  

Amortization expense  6(29)   6,373     10,067  

Expected credit losses  12(2)   4,072     6,089  

Interest expense  6(28)   85,708     103,511  

Interest expense - Lease liability  6(9)(28)   4,208     4,780  

Interest income  6(25) (  949 )  (  4,803 ) 

Share of profits of associates  6(7)   773     1,369  

Loss (gain) on disposal or retirement of 

property, plant and equipment, net 

 6(27) 

(  5,630 )  (  2,494 ) 

Cash increase to retain employee 

subscription remuneration costs 

 6(19) 

  -     20,895  

Unrealized exchange loss     37,465     10,045  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:            

Changes in operating assets            

Notes receivables   (  31,967 )  (  15,794 ) 

Trade receivables and trade receivables 

from related parties 

  

(  414,847 )    39,590  

Other receivables   (  9,002 )  (  23,961 ) 

Inventories   (  1,160,392 )  (  12,553 ) 

Other current assets   (  106,631 )    35,305  

Other noncurrent assets   (  15,617 )    7,696  

Changes in liabilities            

Notes payable     489,988     113,353  

Accounts payable (related parties)     527,247     15,614  

Other payables     306,051   (  9,560 ) 

Other current liabilities   (  48,867 )    12,880  

Other noncurrent liabilities     1,230     44,215  

Cash generated from operations     648,020     1,303,375  

Income taxes paid   (  42,627 )  (  109,226 ) 

Interest received     950     4,806  

Interest paid   (  90,406 )  (  103,583 ) 

Net cash generated by operating 

activities 

  

  515,937     1,095,372  

 
(continue in next page) 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

2021 and 2020 January 1 to December 31 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

  

NOTE 

 January 1 to 

December 31, 2021 

   January 1 to 

December 31, 2020  

            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES            

Acquisitions of: Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive income – current 

  

( $ 1,293 )   $ -  

Proceeds from disposal or redemption of: 

Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income – current 

  

  2,929     17,608  

Decrease (increase) in financial assets at 

amortized cost 

  

  54,839   (  1,112 ) 

Acquisitions of: Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive income – noncurrent 

  

(  7,121 )  (  6,503 ) 

Investment using the equity method   (  11,925 )    -  

Dividends received from investments accounted 

for using equity 

  

  1,221     2,441  

Acquisitions of: Property, plant and equipment  6(32) (  1,582,254 )  (  1,689,681 ) 

Proceeds from disposal or redemption of: 

Property, plant and equipment 

  

  197,125     10,235  

Increase in intangible assets   (  5,791 )  (  2,715 ) 

Refundable deposits refunded     7,646     1,047  

Net cash used in investing activities   (  1,344,624 )  (  1,668,680 ) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES            

Increase (decrease) in short-term loans  6(33) (  762,651 )    958,281  

Proceeds from short-term bills payable  6(33)   660,000     40,000  

Repayment of the principal portion of lease 

liabilities 

 6(33) 

(  13,468 )  (  20,136 ) 

Proceeds from long-term bank loans  6(33)   1,385,207     6,319,534  

Repayment from long-term bank loans  6(33) (  2,238,866 )  (  5,909,807 ) 

Cash capital increase  6(20)   2,250,000     -  

Cash dividends  6(22) (  307,469 )  (  509,913 ) 

Proceeds from Disposal of Treasury Stock  6(20)   -   (  35,010 ) 

Net cash used in financing activities     972,753     842,949  

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE     8,177   (  829 ) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS 

  

  152,243     268,812  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 

OF YEAR 

  

  795,667     526,855  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF 

YEAR 

  

 $ 947,910    $ 795,667  

 

 
The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and should be 

read in conjunction with these consolidated financial statements. 
 

 Chairman：Shen, Guo-rong Manager：Chen, Jun-zhi Chief accountant：Chen, Chang-yuan 
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Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries  

Consolidated Financial Statements Notes  

2021 and 2020 January 1 to December 31  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

(Unless otherwise specified)  

 

1.  HISTORY OF THE COMPANY 

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited (the “Company”) or Hota Industrial 

Manufacturing Company Limited with subsidiaries (the “Group”), is  a Republic of China 

(R.O.C.) corporation, was incorporated in January, 1973 and started to ope rate at the 

same time. The Group is a dedicated foundry in the manufacturing and selling gear wheels,  

shafts and various transmission parts l ike for automobile,  motorbike, agricultural 

machinery, tooling machinery, etc.  In September 2001, the Group ’s shares were listed on 

the Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE).  

2.  THE AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

The accompanying parent company only financial  statements were approved and 

authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on March 16, 2022.  

3.  APLLICATION OF NEWLY ISSUED AND REVISED STANDARDS AND 

INTERPRETATIONS 

(1)  Application of the amendments to the IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect by the 

Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC)  

Amendments to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 

Securi ties Issuers for application starting from 2021 and the IFRSs issued by 

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and endorsed by the FSC with 

effective date starting 2021:  

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations 

Effective Date Issued by 

IASB 

Amendments to IFRS 4 “Temporary exemption from the extension 

of International Financial Reporting Standard No. 9” January 1, 2021 

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS4 and IFRS 16 

“Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2” January 1, 2021 

Amendment to IAS 16 “Provisions on the Accounting Treatment 

of the COVID-19 Pandemic-related Rental Concession after June 

30, 2021” 

Note: FSC allows to apply from January 1st, 2021 onwards. 

April 1, 2021 (Note) 

 

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group ’s 

financial condition and financial performance based on the Group ’s assessment.  

(BLANK BELOW)
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(2)  IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC  
New standards, interpretations and amendme nts issued by IASB and applicable in 2022 

but not  yet included in the IFRSs as endorsed by the FSC are as follows:  

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations 

Effective Date Issued by 

IASB 

Amendments to IFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework” January 1, 2022 

Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before 

Intended Use” 
January 1, 2022 

Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts–Cost of Fulfilling a Contract” January 1, 2022 

2018-2020 periodical annual improvements January 1, 2022 

 

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group ’s 

financial condition and financial performance based on the Group ’s assessment.  

(3)  The IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC 

New standards,  interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included 

in the IFRSs as endorsed by the FSC are as follows:  

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations 

Effective Date Issued by 

IASB 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets To be 

determined by IASB between an Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture” 

To be determined by IASB 

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IFRS 17 “Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - 

Comparative Information” 

January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current” January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates” January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising 

from a Single Transaction” 

January 1, 2023 

 

The above standards and interpretations  have no significant impact to the Group ’s 

financial condition and financial performance based on the Group ’s assessment.  

4.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Significant accounting policies adopted in preparation of these consolidated financial 

statements are listed as below, which have been consistently applied during all reporting 

periods except other specific illustrations.  

(1)  Statement of compliance  

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 

conformity with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 

Securities Issuers and the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC with the effective dates 

(collectively, “Taiwan-IFRSs”).  

(2)  Basis for preparation  

1. Except below key items, these consolidated financial statements have been 

prepared on the historical  cost basis:  

(1) The calculation of financial assets is through other comprehensive profit and 

loss calculation of fair value measurement.  

(2) Determined welfare liabilities are recognized as the net amount of the presen t 

value of the definite welfare obligations after the deduction of retirement fund 

assets.  

2. The management has to make certain significant accounting estimates based on 

their professional judgment and decide the accounting policy according to the 

IFRSs as endorsed by the FSC. Any change in the assumption could result in a 

significant change in the financial  statements. The management of the Bank and 

subsidiaries believes that the assumptions used in the consolidated statements are 

appropriate.  For highly complicated matters, matters requiring high level of judgments, 

significant judgments that could have an impact on the consolidated financial statements 

and estimates and key sources of assumption uncertainty, please refer to Note 5 for further 

details. 
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(3)  Basis of Consolidation  

1. The basis for the consolidated financial  statements  

(1) The group incorporates all subsidiaries into the consolidated financial report 

compilation body. Subsidiary refers to an entity controlled by the group 

(including structured entities). When the group is exposed to variable 

compensation from the participation of the individual or has rights to such 

variable compensation, and through its  power or ability to influence the 

individual’s payment, the Group controls the individual.  S ubsidiaries will 

enter the consolidated financial report from the day when the Group gains 

control, and terminates the merger on the day when the control  is lost.  

(2) Transactions,  balances and unrealized equities between subsidiaries are 

eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have done essential 

adjustments to be the same as the Group’s. 

(3) Each component of the profit and loss and other comprehensive gains and 

losses is attributed to the owner of the parent company and non -controll ing 

interest.  The total amount of the comprehensive profit and loss is also 

attributed to the owner of the parent company and the non -controlling interest,  

even if there is a non-controlling loss caused by the equity.  

(4) If the change in the amount of stocking owned by  the subsidiaries does not 

lead to loss of control (transaction with non -controll ing rights and interests),  

it  is treated as an equity transaction, which means it  is treated as a transaction 

with the owner.  The difference between the adjustment amount of t he non-

controlling equity and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is 

directly recognized as equity.  

(5) When the Group loses the control  over subsidiaries, re -evaluate the remaining 

investment at  fair value, and s et it  as cost for initial recognition of financial  

assets or of affiliates investment,  the fair value and carrying amount are 

recognized as current profit  and loss.  For all amounts previously recognized 

in other comprehensive profit and loss related to the  subsidiary, the accounting 

handles the same as if the Group directly disposes of related assets or 

liabilities,  which is,  if  the profit or loss previously recognized as other 

comprehensive profit or loss, when disposing of related assets or l iabilities, 

they will  be re-classified as profit or loss.  When the control of the subsidiary 

is lost, the profit or loss will be re -classified from equity as profit  or loss.
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2. The subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements:     
Percentage of Ownership 

(%) 
 

Name of 

investor 

 

Name of subsidiary Main business and products 

December 31, 

2021 

December 31, 

2020 

Explanatory 

Note 

Hota Industrial 

Manufacturing 

Company 

Limited 

Hozuan Investment 

Company Limited 

(“Hozuan”) 

Investment activities      100  100 

 

Hota Industrial 

Manufacturing 

Company 

Limited 

Howin Precision Company 

Limited (“Howin”) 

Manufacturing of internal 

combustion engines and 

piston rings for 

automobiles and 

motorbikes, and wholesale 

and retail sale of hardware 

parts and metal parts 

   61.05  61.05 

 

Hota Industrial 

Manufacturing 

Company 

Limited 

Wuxi Hoda Precision Gear 

Company Limited (“Wuxi 

Hoda”) 

Manufacturing and sell 

various of precision gears 

for automobiles and 

motorbikes 

     100  100 

 

Hota Industrial 

Manufacturing 

Company 

Limited 

HOTATECH, INC. Sell various precision gears 

for automobiles and 

reinvest USA Unison 

Investment Co., Inc. for 

selling various precision 

gears of automobiles 

     100  100 

 

Hota Industrial 

Manufacturing 

Company 

Limited 

CAPTAIN HOLDING CO., 

LTD. 

Holding company      100  100 

 

Hota Industrial 

Manufacturing 

Company 

Limited 

Juda Intelligent Technology 

(“Juda”) 

Manufacturing and sell 

various of precision gears 

for automobiles and 

motorbikes 

   83.33  83.33 

 

Hota Industrial 

Manufacturing 

Company 

Limited 

Hefu Construction Co., Ltd. 

(“Hefu”) 

Construction and 

investment development of 

residences, apartments and 

mixed residential office 

buildings 

      50         -  Note 

HOTATECH, 

INC. 

UNISON INVESTMENT 

CO., INC. 

Selling various precision 

gears and shafts of 

automobiles 

     100  100 
 

CAPTAIN 

HOLDING 

CO., LTD. 

Howon (Whaian) 

Automobile Components 

Company Limited 

Manufacturing and selling 

of automobile gearboxes 

and gears 

     100  100 

 

 

Note: The Group established the subsidiary – Hefu Construction Co., Ltd.  on 

August 2021.  
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3. Subsidiaries not included in consolidated financial  reports:  None.  

4. Subsidiaries adopting different ways of adjustment and handling during accounting 

period: None.  

5. Significant l imitations:  None.  

6. Subsidiaries hold significant un-controll ing rights and profits to the Group: None.  

(4)  Foreign currency translations  
Items included in the financial  statements of each enti t ies are measured using the currency 

of the primary economic environment  in which the enti ty operates (the “functional  

currency”).  The consolidated financial  statements are presented in New Taiwan Dollar.  

1.  Foreign currency transaction & balance  

(1) Foreign currency t ransactions are converted into functional currency using the spot  

exchange rate on the transaction day or  the measurement day, and the conversion  

difference result ing from such transactions is recognized as the current profit  or 

loss.  

(2) The balance of foreign currency assets  & liabil i t ies will  be adjusted according to the 

spot exchange rate on the date of t he asset  l iabil i ty balance sheet,  and the conversion 

difference result ing from the adjustment shall  be recognized as current profit  and 

loss.  

(3) The balance of  foreign currency non -monetary assets & liabil i t ies that  is measured 

at  fair  value through other  comprehensive gains and losses is evaluated and adjusted 

at  the spot  exchange rate on the reporting date. The conversion difference arising 

from the adjustment is  recognized in other comprehensive gains and losses;  The fair 

value measurement is based on t he historical  exchange rate on the init ial  transaction 

date.  

(4) All  currency exchange profits  and losses are l isted in “other  profit  and loss” in the 

income statement.  

2.  Conversion of foreign operating agencies  

(1) Functional  currency and expression curr ency are different from all  group enti t ies,  

associated enterprises & joint  agreements,  and their  operating results and financial  

status are converted into expression currency as following:  

A. The assets & liabil i t ies expressed in each asset  l iabil i ty table  are converted at  

the closing exchange rate on the asset  l iabil i ty table date;  

B. The income & expenses expressed in each consolidated income statement are 

converted at  the current average exchange rate;  

C. All  conversion differences result ing from the con version are recognized as other  

consolidated profits and losses.  

(2) When the foreign operating organization that  is part  of the disposit ion or sale  is a  

subsidiary company,  the accumulated exchange difference recognized as other  

comprehensive gains and losses will  be re -at tr ibuted to non-controll ing interests of  

the foreign operating organization.  However, even if  the Group sti l l  retains the 

partial  r ights and interests of the former subsidiary,  i t  has  lost  the control  of  the 

foreign operating agency’s subsidiary company, i t  will  deal  with the entire right and 

interest  of the foreign operating agency.  

(5)  The classification standards of current & non -current for assets and liabilities  
1. Assets that  meet 1one of the following conditions are classified as curren t assets:  

(1) Assets were expected to realize in normal business cycle or they are intended to be 

sold or consumed.  

(2) Assets were held on the purpose of transaction.  

(3) Assets expected to realize within 12 months after the reporting date.  

(4) Cash and cash equivalents are  included except those who are subject  to restrict ions 

on exchange or use to pay off  debts  at  least  12 months after the date  of the reporting 

date.  

The Group classifies those not meeting above conditions to be non -current assets.  

2.  Liabil i t ies that  meet  1one of the following conditions are classified as current l iabil i t ies:  

(1) Assets were expected to realize in normal business cycle.  

(2) Assets were held on the purpose of transaction.  

(3) Liabil i t ies expected to realize within 12 mo nths after the reporting date.  

(4) It  is  not possible to defer the repayment period without any condition at  least  12 

months after the date of the reporting date. Indebtedness clauses which may lead to 

l iquidation by issuing equity instruments,  depending o n the choice of the trading 
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counterparty, do not affect  their  classification.  

The Group classifies those not meeting above conditions to be non -current l iabil i t ies.  

(6)  Cash equivalents  

Cash equivalents refer to short -term and highly l iquid investments that can be 

converted into fixed amount of cash at any time and the risk of value deviation is 

very small.  

(7)  Financial assets measured at  fair value through profit and loss  
1. Refers to financial  assets that  are not measured at  amortized cost  or at  fair  value throu gh 

other comprehensive gains and losses. Financial  assets that  are measured at  amortized 

cost  or at  fair  value through other  comprehensive gains  and losses. When the 

measurement can be eliminated or significantly reduced or the recognition is not 

consistent,  the Group specifies at  the t ime of init ial  recognition as measured at  fair 

value through profit  and loss of financial  assets.  

2.  The Group adopts t rading day accounting for financial  assets that  are measured at  fair 

value for the through gains and losse s of t ransactions in compliance with customary 

transactions.  

3.  The Group is init ial ly measured at  fair  value,  and related transaction costs are 

recognized in profit  and loss.  And then, i ts profit  or loss is recognized at  fair  value.  

4. When the right to  r eceive dividends is confirmed, the economic benefits related to the 

dividends are l ikely to flow in. And then the amount of dividends can be reliably 

measured, the Group recognizes  dividend income in the profit  and loss.  

(8)  The calculation of financial assets  is  through other comprehensive profit and loss 

calculation of fair value measurement  
1. Regarding the non-cancellable option at  the t ime of init ial  recognition,  the fair  value 

change of the investment of equity tools not holding for trading is reported to  other 

comprehensive gains and losses. Or at  the same time, i t  meets  the following investment 

conditions:  

(1) Holding the financial  assets under the business model  for the purpose of collecting 

contractual  cash flow & sell ing.  

(2) Cash flow that  the financ ial  assets  generate during the specific contract  terms is  

entirely for the payment of the principal  amount and for the circulation the interest  

and interest  of the principal amount.  

2.  The Group adopts t rading day accounting for financial  assets that  are m easured at  fair 

value for the through gains and losses of t ransactions in compliance with customary 

transactions.  

3.  The Group is init ial ly measured at  fair  value,  and related transaction costs are 

recognized in profit  and loss.  Then,  i ts profit  or loss is  recognized at  fair  value:  

(1) Changes in the fair  value of equity tools are recognized in other comprehensive 

profits and losses , and are recognized before they are to be delisted Cumulative 

gains  and losses l isted in other comprehensive gains and losses  or  subsequent losses 

and losses cannot be reclassified to gains & losses,  and transferred to retained 

earnings.  When the right to receive dividends is confirmed, the economic benefits  

related to the dividends are l ikely to flow in.  And then the amount  of d ividends can 

be reliably measured, the Group recognizes dividend income in the profit  and loss.  

(2) Changes in the fair  value of debt instruments are recognized in other comprehensive 

profit  and loss,  impairment losses , interest  income and foreign currency  exchange 

gains  and losses  before delist ing are recognized in profit  and loss.  And when 

delist ing, accumulated gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive 

profit  and loss would re -classify as profit  and loss instead of equity.  

(9)  Financial assets at amortized cost  
1. Refers to those who meet the following conditions at  the same time:  

(1) Holding the financial  asset  under the operating model for the purpose of obtaining 

the total  cash flow from the contract .  

(2) Cash flow that  the financial  a ssets  generate during the specific contract  terms is  

entirely for the payment of the principal  amount and for the circulation the interest  

and interest  of the principal amount.  

2.  The Group adopts trade -day accounting for  financial  assets that  comply with transaction 

conventions which are measured at  amortized cost  after sale.  

3.  At the t ime of init ial  recognition, the company calculates the transaction as a cost 

measurement based on i ts fair  value, and subsequently adopts the effective interest  
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method to recognize the interest  income during the circulation per iod according to the 

amortization procedure and recognition of  the impairment loss.  In addit ion, when 

l ist ing, the profit  or loss is recognized in profit  and loss.  

4.  The Group holds fixed deposits tha t  do not meet the cash equivalents.  Due to the short 

holding period,  the effect  of discounting is not significant,  and i t  is  measured by the 

amount of  investment.  

(10)  Accounts Receivable & Invoices  
1. Refers to the accounts & invoices  that  have been unconditio nally received in exchange 

for the right to the value of the transfer of goods or services in accordance with the 

contract .  

2.  Short -term accounts receivable & notes that  are interests unpaid, which the discount has  

l i t t le impact.  The Group uses the original  invoice amount to measure the amount.  

3.  The business model  of the Group’s expected sale of accounts receivable is to collect  

contractual  cash flow & sell ,  and then to be measured at  fair  value, and changes are 

recognized as other comprehensive profits and losses.  

(11)  Financial asset impairment  
On every day of the balance sheet  of assets,  the Group invests  in debt instruments 

measured at  fair  value through other comprehensive gains and losses & receivables from 

financial  assets measured at  amortized cost  and  part  of  the account that  contains major 

financial  affairs.  After considering all  reasonable and corroborative information 

(including forward-looking information),  for those whose credit  r isk has  not increased 

significantly since the init ial  recognition, t he amount of  loss will  be adjusted against  

the expected credit  loss for 12 months. For those whose credit  r isk has increased 

significantly since the init ial  recognition, the credit  loss balance shall  be adjusted 

against  the loss based on the expected credi t  loss amount during the duration. Regarding 

accounts receivable or  contract  assets that  do not include major components in financial 

statements ,  the balance of losses is offset  against  the amount of expected credit  losses 

during the duration.  

(12)  Derecognition of financial assets  
The Group derecognizes a financial  asset  only when situation happens as follow:  

1. The contractual  r ights to the cash flows from the financial  asset  expire.  

2.  The contractual  r ights to the cash flows from the financial  asset  have bee n transferred 

and all  the risks and rewards of the financial  asset  ownership have been removed.  

3. The contractual  r ights to the cash flows from the financial  asset  have been transferred 

and the Group doesn’t  reserve the control  of the financial  asset .  

(13)  Lease transaction as a Lessor, Lease account receivable / Operating lease  
Rental  income from operating lease excluding any incentive given to the lessee, is  

recognized on a  straight -l ine basis over the term of the lease.  

(14)  Inventory 
Inventories are recognized at  the lower of  cost  or net  realizable value where cost  is 

calculated by the weighted average method. The costs of f inish goods and work -in-

process include raw material ,  direct  labor,  other direct  costs,  and manufacturing cost  

related to production apportioned according to normal production capacity,  except the 

cost  of f inancing.  When comparing the cost  and the net  realizable value is lower, the 

i tem-by-item comparison method is adopted.  The net realizable value of the inventory 

is determined mainly based on the price est imated during the normal business  process 

deduct cost  assumptions of future demand and related variable sales expense.  

(15)  Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method / Associates  

1. An associate is  an enti ty over which the Group has significa nt  influence and that  is 

not a subsidiary.  Usual ly,  the Group owns directly or indirectly over 20% of the voting 

right.  Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is init ial ly recognized 

at  i ts  cost  of acquisit ion.  

2. The Group recognizes the share of income after acquisit ion as income of current 

period, and the share of other comprehensive income after acquisit ion as other 

comprehensive income. The share of loss of any associate has equal or exceed the 

Group’s equity including any other unsecur ed receivables,  the Group shall  not 

recognize any further  loss,  except statutory obligation, presumptive obligation, or 

payables for the associate.  

3.  Equity changes against  non -income or other comprehensive income without influence 

on the shareholding percentage of the associate,  the Group shall  recognize the share 
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of equity changes as capital  reserve.  

4. The unrealized gain/ loss of the transaction between the Group and the association has 

been eliminated by the adjustment  to the share of i ts  equity except  clear evidence 

indicates the assets transferred have been impaired. The accounting policies of  the 

association have been adjusted for sure and consistent with that  of the Group.  

5.  When the Group subscribes to addit ional shares in an associate at  a percen tage 

different from its exist ing ownership percentage, the result ing carrying amount of the 

investment differs from the amount of the Group ’s proportionate interest  in the net  

value of the associate.  The Group records such a difference as  an adjustment to 

investments with the corresponding amount charged or credited to “Capital  reserve” 

and “Investments Accounted for  Using Equity Method. ” If  the Group’s investment 

percentage is reduced due to the addit ional subscription to the shares of associate by 

other investors,  the proportionate amount of the gains or losses  previously recognized 

in other comprehensive income related to that  associate shall  be reclassified to profit  

or loss on the same basis.  

6.  When the Group disposes shares of an association, if  i t  lo ses significant influence on 

the association, the accounting treatment of al l  amounts previously recognized in 

other comprehensive income related to the association will  be the same basis  as if  the 

Group directly disposes of related assets or l iabil i t ies.  That is if  the benefits or losses 

previously recognized as other comprehensive income will  be reclassified as gains 

and losses when the relevant assets or l iabi l i t ies are disposed of.  When the Group 

loses a significant influence on the association, the ben efits or losses will  be taken 

from equity shall  be reclassified as profit  and loss.  If  i t  st i l l  has a significant 

influence on the association, the amount previously recognized in other 

comprehensive income will  be transferred out in the previously mention ed manner 

only on a proportional  basis.  

(16)  Property, Plant and Equipment  

1. Property, Plant and Equipment  are accounted on the basis of acquisit ion cost ,  and the 

relevant interest  during the acquisit ion and construction period is capitalized.  

2. Subsequent costs are accounted in the book amount of the asset  or recognized as a 

separate asset  only when the future economic benefits related to the i tem are l ikely 

to flow into the Group and the cost  of the i tem can be reliably measured. The book 

amount of the replacement shall  be delisted. All  other maintenance costs are 

recognized as current profit  and loss when incurred.  

3. Property, plant,  and equipment are measured at  the cost  model.  Except  for land 

without depreciation, other depreciation is calculated on a str aight -l ine basis based 

on the estimated useful l ives. If  the Property, Plant,  and Equipment components are 

significant,  their  depreciation shall  be separately enlisted.  

4. The Group reviews the residual value, estimated useful l ives,  and depreciation metho d 

of each asset  at  the end of the fiscal  year.  If  the expectation of the residual value or 

the estimated useful  l ives  is different from the previous estimation, or the expected 

consumption pattern for the future benefits contained in the asset  changes 

significantly,  i t  shall  be handled on the date incurred in accordance with International 

Accounting Standard No. 8,  “Accounting Policies,  Changes in Accounting Estimates 

and Errors”.  

Estimated Useful  Lives of Assets are l isted below:  
Buildings and Construction (including ancillary works)   6 ~ 50 years 

Mechanical equipment   3 ~ 26 years 

Transportation equipment   3 ~ 16 years 

Utility equipment   5 ~ 16 years 

Other equipment   2 ~ 25 years 

 

(17)  Lease transaction as a Lessee －  Right-of-use Assets / Lease Liabilities  

1. The Group recognizes right -of-use assets  and lease l iabil i t ies for al l  leases at  the 

commencement date of the lease properties. Payments of lease contracts for short -

term leases (leases  of  machinery and equipment  and others)  and low value assets 

leases are recognized as expenses on a straight -l ine basis during the lease period.  

2. Lease l iabil i t ies are measured at  the present value of the unpaid lease payments  

discounted by the lessee’s incremental  borrowing rates  at  the commencement date of 

the lease. Lease payments include:  
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Fixed payments,  deduct collectable lease incentives.  

Thereafter,  lease l iabili t ies are measured at  amortized cost  using the effective interest  

method, with interest  expense recognized over the  lease period. When the lease period 

or lease payment  changes due to non -contract  modification,  the Group re -measures 

the lease l iabil i t ies with a corresponding adjustment to the right -of-use assets.  

3.  Right -of-use assets  are measured at  cost  on the comme ncement date of  the lease, 

where the cost  including:  

(1) The init ial  measurement of lease l iabil i t ies;  

(2) Any lease payment at  or before the commencement date;  

(3) Any init ial  direct  cost  happened on the asset .  

Subsequent measurement is calculated as cost  less accumulated depreciation against  

whether the estimated useful l ives  of assets  or the lease terms is earl ier.  When the 

lease l iabil i t ies were remeasured,  r ight -of-use assets are adjusted by the 

remeasurement  of the lease l iabil i t ies.  

4.  For  lease modifications that  reduce the range of the lease,  the lessee will  reduce the 

book value of the right -of-use asset  to reflect  the partial  or full  termination of the 

lease, and the difference between i t  and the remeasured amount of the lease l iabil i ty 

is recognized in profit  or loss.  

(18)  Investment Properties  
Init ial  recognition of investment properties shall  be recognized at  cost  of acquisit ion, 

and subsequent measurement shall  be presented at  cost  model.  

(19)  Intangible Assets  
1.  Computer software  

Computer software is recognized at  the cost  and straight -l ine amortized according to 

i ts est imated useful l ife of 1 to 3 years.  

2.  Intangible assets,  such as Royalt ies for technology transfer,  are straight -l ine 

amortized on their  estimated useful l ife of 1 to 5 years.  

(20)  Impairment of non-financial assets  
The Group estimates the recoverable amount  of assets that  show signs of impairment on 

the date of the balance sheet.  When the recoverable amount is lower  than i ts book value,  

the impairment  loss is  recognized. Recoverable amount  refers to the higher value of an 

asset  at  fair  value minus the cost  of disposal or i ts value use. When there is none or 

reduction of impairment in the assets recognized in the previous year,  the impairment 

loss shall  be reversed,  but the book value increme nt of  the asset  by the reverse of the 

impairment loss  shall  not exceed the book value of the asset  which was assumed no 

impairment and was deducted depreciation or amortization.  

(21)  Loan 
Loan refers  to long-term and short -term loans borrowed from banks. The Gr oup 

measures i ts  fair  value minus transaction costs at  init ial  recognition. Subsequently,  for 

any difference between the price after deducting transaction costs  and the redemption 

value, the interest  expenses during the circulation period use the effective  interest  

method to recognize profit  and loss in the amortization procedure.  

(22)  Account Payable and Note Payable  
1. Note payable refers to debts  arising from the purchase of raw materials,  

commodities or labor services on credit  and arising from business or non-business 

factors.  

2.  Due to the discount has l i t t le effect ,  short -term accounts payables and note 

payables that  interest  unpaid, the Group uses the init ial  invoice amount to measure.  

(23)  Derecognition of Financial Liabilities  
When the contractual  obligations are fulfi l led, canceled,  or expired, the Group will  

derecognize the financial  l iabil i t ies.  

(24)  Employee Benefits  
1.  Shor t -term employee benefi ts  

Short - term employee benefi t s  are  measured at  the  undiscounted  amount  o f the benefi t s  

expected to  be pa id as an e xpense in exchange for  service rendered by employees.  

2 .  Ret irement benefi t s  

(1)  Defined contr ibut ion plans  

For  def ined contr ibution plans ,  the amount o f the re t irement fund on the basis o f 

employee ’s  responsib il i t ies i s  recognized as the cost  o f  the benef i t  p lan of  the cur rent  

per iod.  

(2)  Defined benefi t  p lans  
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A. The net  benefi t  l iabil i t ies under  the def ined benefi t  p lan are calculated by 

discount ing the number of future benefi t s  the  employee earned no w or  in the past ,  

and the present  value of def ined bene fi t  l iabi l i t ies on the da te o f the balance sheet  

deduct  the  fa ir  value  of  the  benefic ia l  asse t .  The ne t  benefi t  l iabi l i t ies are 

determined by the actuary ’s calculat ions every year  using the Projected Uni t  

Cred it  Method.  The d iscount ra te  re fers  to  the  mark et  ra te  o f  re turn of  government  

bonds (on the balance sheet  date) .  

B.  Remeasurement from the  def ined benefi t  p lan i s  recognized in o ther  

comprehensive income of the current  per iod,  and  reflected in retained  earnings .  

3 .  Remunera tion of employees,  d irec tors  and supervisors  

Remunera tion of employees ,  d irec tors and  supervisors are recognized  as expenses and 

l iab il i t ies when there are legal  or  expected  obl igations and the amount can be reasonably 

es t imated .  I f  there i s  a  discrepancy be tween the  actual  and es t im ated a l lotment and the 

subsequent reso lut ion of  the  shareholders ’ meeting,  i t  sha ll  be  deal t  wi th  the  Changes  in 

Accounting Estimates .  

(25)  Share based payment  
The share based payment agreement fo r  equi ty  delivery re fers to  the employee services 

obtained by mea sur ing the  fa ir  value  of  the  equity instruments  given on the  grant  date ,  which 

is  recognized as remuneration costs during the ves ted per iod,  and the equi ty is  relat ively 

adjusted .  The fair  value of equi ty ins truments  should re f lec t  the e ffects o f bo th acqu ired and  

non-vested  condi t ions  on the  market  pr ice.  The recognized remunerat ion cost  i s  adjus ted in 

accordance wi th the expected amount o f rewards tha t  meet  the service condit ions and the 

non-market  pr ice ves ted  condit ions unt i l  the f inal  recognized amount  is  recognized by the  

ves ted amount on the vest ing da te.  

(26)  Income tax 

1 .  Income taxes inc lude cur rent  and defer red income taxes .  Except for  the income tax i tems 

included in other  comprehensive income or  equity,  which are separately l is ted in o ther  

comprehens ive income or  direc t ly l i s ted in the  Equity,  the income tax is  recognized in 

the income.  

2 .  The Group ca lculates the current  income tax based  on the tax ra te  that  has been legis lated  

on the balance sheet  date o f the country where  i t  opera tes and generates  taxab le income.  

The management regular ly eva luates the s tatus o f  income tax declarat ions  with respec t  to  

applicable income tax regula t ions and,  where  appl icab le,  est imates the income tax 

l iab il i t ies based on the  expected  taxes to  be  pa id  to  the taxat ion au thori ty.  Income tax of 

reta ined earnings is  levied in accordance wi th the Income Tax Act.  In the  next  year  a f ter  

the subsequent earnings are genera ted,  a fter  the shareholders ’ meeting ra t i fied  the earning 

dis tr ibution proposa l ,  the d istr ibut ion of ac tual  e arnings wi l l  be confirmed and the 

reta ined earnings income tax expenses wi l l  be recognized.  

3 .  Deferred income tax adopts the balance sheet  method,  and recognizes the temporary 

diffe rence between the tax base o f assets and l iabi l i t ies and thei r  book amount s in the 

conso lida ted ba lance sheet .  Defer red inco me tax l iab il i t ies ar i s ing from the goodwil l 

or igina lly recognized are not  recognized.  I f  the  deferred  income tax or iginates  from the 

or igina l  recognit ion of  assets or  l iab il i t ies in the  transact ion and doe s  not  affec t  

account ing prof i t s  or  accounting at  the t ime of the transact ion.  Tax income ( taxable loss)  

is  no t  recognized .  I f  the temporary di fference caused by invest ing in a  subsid iary co mpany, 

the Group can contro l  the  t iming of  the  revers ion of the tem porary d ifference ,  and  the 

temporary di ffe rence wi l l  not  be recognized  i f  i t  is  l ike ly that  i t  wi l l  not  rever t  in  the 

foreseeab le  future.  Deferred income tax adopts the  tax ra te  (and Tax Acts)  tha t  has  been 

enacted on the ba lance shee t  date and  i s  expected  to  app ly when the  re levant  deferred  

income tax asset  i s  rea l ized or  the deferred income tax l iabi l i ty is  set t led.  

4 .  Deferred  tax asse ts are recognized wi thin the  scope where  temporary di fferences are l ikely 

to  be  used to  o ffset  future taxable income,  and  unrecognized and recognized deferred  tax 

asse ts  are  reassessed on each ba lance sheet  date.  

5 .  When there is  a  legal  enforcement r ight  to  o ffse t  the recognized current  income tax asse ts 

and l iab il i t ies,  and there  is  an intention to  pay off on a net  bas is o r  to  real ize assets and 

l iab il i t ies a t  the same  t ime,  the current  income tax asse ts and current  income tax 

l iab il i t ies are mutua lly exclusive.  When there i s  s ta tutory enforcement  power to  o ffset  

the current  income tax assets and current  income  tax l iab il i t ies,  and the deferred income 

tax asse ts and l iabi l i t ies are genera ted by the  same taxpayer  taxed by the same tax 

authori ty,  or  by d ifferent  taxpayers  but  each ent i ty intends to  The  deferred income tax 

asse ts and l iabi l i t ies are offse t  aga ins t  each other  wh en the ne t  basis is  se t t led or  the 

asse ts  and l iab il i t ies a re  real ized a t  the same t ime.  

(27)  Shares 

1 .  Common shares are  classified as Equity. The net amount directly attr ibutable to 

the increase in the issuance of new shares or stock options after deduction o f taxes 
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is  l isted as a price reduction in Equity.  

2.  When the Company buys back the outstanding shares, the payment of consideration 

including any increase costs directly attr ibuted and excluding tax,  is recognized as 

a deduction of Equity. When the purcha sed shares are reissued afterward, the 

payment of consideration received will  deduct any increase costs directly 

attr ibuted and income tax influence, the difference against  the book value of the 

shares will  be recognized as an adjustment to Equity.  

(28)  Dividend distribution 
Dividend to the shareholders  of  the Company is based on the resolut ion of  the 

shareholders ’ meeting of the Company and recognized in the f inancial s ta tements .  Cash 

dividends are  recognized as Liabil ity;  Stock dividends are recognized as Stoc k dividends 

to be dis tribute,  and will  be transferred to  common shares on the base date  for  the 

issuance of new shares.  

(29)  Revenue recognition  
The group manufactures and sells gear wheels ,  shafts,  and various transmission 

components  products.  Revenue is  the f air value of the received or  receivable  for the sales  

of goods to  customers  outs ide the Group in  normal business  act ivi ties,  expressed in 

deducting sales tax,  sales re turns,  quantity discounts,  and discounts .  Revenue is  

recognized when the control  power of  the product  is transferred to  the customer,  which 

means when the product is  delivered to the customer and the Group has no uncompleted 

contractual  obligat ions that  may affect the customer ’s  acceptance of the product.  When 

the control of the product has be en transferred to the customer,  the group nei ther  

continues to part ic ipate  in the management of the product nor maintains effective control 

over the product,  and the customer accepts the product according to the sales contract ,  

and there  is object ive evidence showing that all  acceptance terms have been met,  the 

del ivery of the product assures.  

(30)  Government Grant  
The Government Grant can be reasonably assured that  an enterprise  will  comply with the 

conditions imposed, and it  wil l  be recognized at i ts fa ir valu e.  If  the nature of the 

Government Grant is to compensate for the Group ’s expenses,  i t  wil l  be recognized as  

the current profi t  and loss on the basis  of the system during the occurrence of the related 

expenses.  Government Grant related to  real es tate,  hous ing, and equipment is recognized 

as non-current l iabil it ies and as current profi ts and losses based on the est imated useful  

li fe of the relevant assets using the s traight -l ine method.  

(31)  Operating Departments  
The Group’s operating departments ’ information and  internal management reports 

provided to  the main operat ing decis ion -makers are  reported in  a  consis tent manner.  The 

main operat ional decision -maker is  responsible for a llocat ing resources to the operat ing 

departments  and evaluating their performance,  whic h has been identified that the main 

operating decis ion -maker of  the Group is the Board of  Directors.  

5.  SIGNIFICANT SOURCES OF UNCERTAINTY IN MAJOR ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, 

ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES 
When the Group prepared this consolidated financial  report ,  the  management  has  used i ts 

judgment  to determine the accounting policy and made accounting estimations and assumptions 

based on reasonable expectations of future events on the circumstances at  the balance sheet date. 

The major accounting judgments and assump tions may be different  from the actual  results and 

will  be continuously evaluated and adjusted from historical  experience and other factors.  These 

estimations and assumptions have the risk that  the book value of assets and l iabil i t ies will  be 

adjusted significantly in the next  f iscal  year.  Please follow explanations on major accounting 

judgments,  assumptions, and uncertainty of estimations:  

(1) Major Judgments  on Accounting Policy  

1.Financial  assets,  impairment on equity investment  

According to International Financial  Reporting Standards ( IFRS) No. 9, the Group 

requires a major judgment to determine whether an individual f inancial  asset  as  equity 

investment impairs.  When taking the judgment, the Group assessed whether  the fair  

value of individual  equity investment is lower than i ts cost ,  based on the consideration 

of the financial  health and the short -term business prospects  of  the investee,  including 

the factors of the industry performance, technical  changes, operating performance, and 

financing cash flow.  

2. Financial  assets,  impairment on Account Receivable  

According to International Financial  Reporting Standards ( IFRS) No. 9, the Group 
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requires a major judgment to determine whether an individual  f inancial  asset  as Account 

Receivable impairs.  The Group assesses the recoverabil i ty of Accounts receivable of the 

individual customer and the estimated amount of impairment ,  including the factors of  

f inancing capabil i ty,  repayment conditions, and debt negotiation.  

(2) Major Accounting estimates and assu mptions 

Since inventory is  priced at  the lower of cost  and net realizable value, the Group should 

use judgment and estimation to determine the inventory net  realizable value on the balance 

sheet date. Because technology evolves fast ,  the Group assesses the  amount of inventory 

on the balance sheet due to normal  loss,  obsolescence, or no -market  sales value,  and 

reduces the inventory cost  to the net  realizable value.  This inventory evaluation is mainly 

based on the product demand in a specific period in the fu ture as the estimation basis,  so 

significant adjustments may occur.  

The Group’s book value of inventory is NT 3,056,786 thousand on December 31,  2021.  

6.  EXPLANATION OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING SUBJECTS  

(1)  Cash and Cash equivalents   
 December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

Cash on hand and working capital  $             3,020   $             6,716  

Demand deposit              704,039               354,713  

Foreign currency deposit              240,839               434,210  

Check deposit                   12                    28  

Total  $           947,910   $           795,667  

 

1.  The Group maintains good credit quali ty with financial institutions and interacts 

with many financial  institutions to disperse credit  risks.  The possibility of 

defaults is expected to be very low.  

2. The Group has not provided cash or cash equivalents as pledges.  
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(2)  Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) Financial  Assets  

Items  December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

Current item: 
  

  Equity Instruments 
  

    Listed company stocks  $           150,323   $           151,959  

    Evaluation adjusted (             23,524) (             31,453) 

  Total   $           126,799   $           120,506  

Non-Current item: 
  

  Equity Instruments 
  

    Non-listed company stocks  $            89,750   $            82,629  

    Evaluation adjusted (             30,237) (             18,213) 

  Total   $            59,513   $            64,416  

 

1.The Group chose to classify the equity of strategic investments as financial  assets 

measured at  Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI). The fair 

values of these investments as of December 31, 2021, and 2020 were NT 186,312 

thousand and NT 184,922 thousand respectively.  

2. The details of FVTOCI financial assets recognized in income and comprehensive 

income are listed below:  

  Year 2021   Year 2020  

FVTOCI Equity Instruments 
  

  FVTOCI recognition adjusted  $             2,176   $             9,202  

Derecognition of cumulative gains 

to be transferred to retained 

earnings    (              6,271) (              7,436) 

Total ($             4,095)  $             1,766  

 

3. Regardless of the collateral  held or other credit  enhancements,  the maximum 

amount of credit risk exposure of the Group outstanding FVTOCI financial assets 

on December 31, 2021, and 2020 were NT 186,312 thousand and NT 184,922 

thousand respectively.  

4. Risk and Fair Value information of the FVTOCI financi al assets, please refer to 

notes 12 (2) and (3) for details .  

(3)  Amortized cost  of financial assets  

Items  December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

 Current item:   
     Time deposits (over 3 

months) 

 $            33,872   $            32,819  

     Restricted deposit                    -                56,738  

  $            33,872   $            89,557  

 Non-current item: 
  

     Restricted deposit  $                32   $                32  

 

1.  Regardless of the collateral held or other credit  enhancements, the maximum 

amount of credit  risk exposure of the Group ’s outstanding Amortized cost  

financial assets on December 31, 2021, and 2020 were NT 33,904 thousand and 

NT 89,589 thousand respectively.  

2.  The Group provides time deposits as pledge g uarantees,  please refer to Note 8 for 

details .  

(4)  Account receivable and Note Receivable  
 .  December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  
 Note receivable (NR)  $            50,462   $            18,537  
 Account receivable (AR)  $         2,693,721   $         2,264,779  
 Less: Allowance (             52,708) (             49,700) 
   $         2,641,013   $         2,215,079  
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1. Aging schedule of Account receivable and Note receivable is  listed below:  
  December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  
  AR   NR   AR   NR  

Not overdue  $  2,291,574   $     50,462   $  1,934,807   $     18,537  

Within 120 

days 

      277,969              -        232,660              -  

121-240 days        41,341              -         56,123              -  

241-360 days        55,521              -         18,974              -  

Over 361 days        27,316              -         22,215              -  
  $  2,693,721   $     50,462   $  2,264,779   $     18,537  

 

The above is an aging schedule based on the number of overdue days.  

2. As of December 31, 2021, December 31, 2020, and January 1, 2020, the balance 

of account receivable (including note receivable) between the Group and its 

customers was NT 2,744,183 thousand, NT 2,283,316 thousand, and 2,287,242 

thousand respectively.  

3. The Group signed a non-recourse factoring contract with E.Sun Bank and O -Bank. 

As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the expected sale of accounts receivable 

(belonging to FVTOCI financial assets) was 734,618 thousand and 727,869 

thousand respectively.  On December 31, 2021, the valuation adjustment 

recognized in FVTOCI financial assets was 9,046 thousand; in addition, 

Accumulated Other comprehensive income reclassified to profits  and losses was 

6,975 thousand. For information about the transfe r of financial  assets, please refer 

to Note 6 (5).  

4. Regardless of the collateral  held or other credit  enhancements,  the maximum 

amount of credit risk exposure of the Group ’s outstanding note receivable on 

December 31, 2021, and 2020 were NT 50,462 thousa nd and NT 18,537 thousand 

respectively;  the maximum amount of credit  risk exposure of the Group ’s 

outstanding account receivable on December 31, 2020, and 2019 were NT 

2,693,721 thousand and NT 2,264,779 thousand respectively.  

5. For information on the credit risk information of Account receivable and bills , 

please refer to Note 12 (2).  

(5)  Transfer of Financial  Assets  

Delist all  financial  assets transferred.  

1. The Group signed an account receivable factoring contract  with O -Bank in January 

2018. According to the contract,  when the Group sells account receivable to O -

Bank, the bank prepays approximately 90% of AR to the Group, 10% remains will 

be paid to the group until the bank collects all  the AR. The Group waives the risk 

of uncollectible accounts receivable  but bears the burden by commercial  disputes. 

The Group neither provides collaterals nor any continuous participation in all AR 

transferred, so the Group has already delisted the accounts receivable sold.  

2. As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Group has  delisted the AR, and the 

relevant information unexpired is as follows:  

December 31, 2021  

 Financing    Amount Amount Amount Rate rage 

 objects   AR sold   delisted   prepaid   unpaid   (%)  

 O-Bank   $ 282,452   $ 282,452   $ 254,055   $  28,397  0.75~0.95 

 

December 31, 2020  

 Financing    Amount Amount Amount Rate rage 

 objects   AR sold   delisted   prepaid   unpaid   (%)  

 O-Bank   $ 178,478   $ 178,478   $ 160,550   $  17,928  0.85~1.15 
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(6)  Inventory  
 December 31, 2021   
 Cost   Allowance for price reduction   Book value  

Raw material  $        855,181  ($         12,978)  $        842,203  

Work in process         1,263,149  (          20,786)         1,242,363  

Finish goods         1,043,575  (          71,355)           972,220  

Total  $      3,161,905  ($        105,119)  $      3,056,786  

  
 December 31, 2020   
 Cost   Allowance for price reduction   Book value  

Raw material  $        411,270  ($         10,149)  $        401,121  

Work in process           759,158  (          16,288)           742,870  

Finish goods           824,368  (          70,332)           754,036  

Total  $      1,994,796  ($         96,769)  $      1,898,027  

 

 

Inventory cost recognized by the Group as expenses in  the current period:  
  Year 2021   Year 2020  

Cost of inventory sold  $         5,082,865   $         4,070,631  

Allowances of loss for price decline 

and idle inventory               11,500                 7,905  

Income of the sale of scraps and 

obsoletes (             93,215) (             48,752) 

Other                3,551                 8,440  
  $         5,004,701   $         4,038,224  

 

(7)  Investments under Equity method  

1. The book amounts of individual insignificant associates of the Group  and 

their share of operating results are summarized as follows:  
  December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

KAO FONG MACHINERY CO., 

LTD. 

 $           269,731   $           290,162  

LING WEI CO., LTD.               44,396                29,723  

TAIWAN PYROLYSIS & 

ENERGY REGENERATION 

CORP. 

               3,736                 3,736  

TAKAWA SEIKI, INC.                4,437                 3,472  
              322,300               327,093  

Less: Accumulated loss (              3,736) (              3,736) 
  $           318,564   $           323,357  

 
  Year 2021   Year 2020  

Continuing business unit’s current 

net loss 

($               773) ($             1,369) 

Other comprehensive income (net 

after tax) 

(             15,171)                   92  

Total comprehensive income for 

the current period 

($            15,944) ($             1,277) 
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2. The Group holds less than 20% of the shares of Kao Fong Machinery Co.,  

Ltd. , but because the Group has the ability to influence its  financial and 

operational  policies, it  is classified as an association of the Group.  

3.  The Group’s investment in Kao Fong Machinery Co., Ltd.  has a public quote,  

and its  fair value was NT 208,682 thousand and NT 213,899 thousand as of 

December 31, 2020, and 2019, respectively.  

4. The group has assessed Taiwan Pyrolysis & Energy Regeneration Corp. has 

ceased business and has no actual  operations.  Therefore,  the entire 

investment is listed as an impairment loss of NT 3,736 thousand.  

5. The details of the share of the profits and los ses of Associations and Joint  

ventures that adopt the equity method are as follows:  

Association Invested  Year 2021   Year 2020  

KAO FONG MACHINERY CO., 

LTD. 

($             5,816) ($             1,968) 

LING WEI CO., LTD.                3,969                    62  

TAKAWA SEIKI, INC.                1,074                   537  

     ($               773) ($             1,369) 

 

The share of the profits  and losses of the Associations recognized for the 

investment using the equity method is based  on the evaluation of the financial  

statements of the investee companies that have been reviewed by the 

accountant during the same period.  

6. For information on guarantees provided by investment using the equity 

method, please refer to Note 8 for details.  

(BLANK BELOW)
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(8)  Real Estate, Plants and Equipment   

 Year 2021  

Cost  Balance, begin   Additions   Disposals   Transfers   Net difference   Balance, end  

  Lands  $  1,854,281   $        860  ($        528)  $     57,431  ($      3,334)  $  1,908,710  

  Buildings     3,625,685        278,687  (       2,106)       805,615  (       6,715)     4,701,166  

  Machinery equipment     8,001,969        674,143  (     206,686)       177,211  (       3,596)     8,643,041  

  Transportation 

equipment 

       58,395         13,041  (       3,451)             -  (          28)        67,957  

  Utility equipment        64,176          1,705              -              -  (           2)        65,879  

  Other equipment       544,696        184,452  (      70,963)             -  (         156)       658,029  

  Projects uncomplete and 

equipment to be inspected 

    1,145,645        777,444  (     158,899) (     983,001) (       1,003)       780,186  

    Subtotal  $ 15,294,847   $  1,930,332  ($    442,633)  $     57,256  ($     14,834)  $ 16,824,968  
  

     

Accumulated depreciation  Balance, begin   Additions   Disposals   Transfers   Net difference   Balance, end  

  Buildings  $    788,987   $    102,868  ($      1,299)  $          -  ($        912)  $    889,644  

  Machinery equipment     2,664,451        356,562  (     178,676)             -  (       1,300)     2,841,037  

  Transportation 

equipment 

       26,395          4,978  (       2,292)             -  (          13)        29,068  

  Utility equipment        22,634          3,586              -              -  (           1)        26,219  

  Other equipment       251,527         91,421  (      68,871)             -  (          92)       273,985  

    Subtotal  $  3,753,994   $    559,415  ($    251,138)  $          -  ($      2,318)  $  4,059,953  

  Total  $ 11,540,853  
    

 $ 12,765,015  
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 Year 2020  

Cost  Balance, begin   Additions   Disposals   Transfers   Net difference   Balance, end  

  Lands  $  1,779,124   $     80,250   $          -   $          -  ($      5,093)  $  1,854,281  

  Buildings     3,467,978        151,795  (         900)        11,371  (       4,559)     3,625,685  

  Machinery equipment     7,508,976        345,576  (     102,196)       242,601          7,012      8,001,969  

  Transportation 

equipment 

       56,205          2,453  (         323)             -             60         58,395  

  Utility equipment        58,658          1,535              -          3,978              5         64,176  

  Other equipment       566,128        117,410  (     151,409)        12,285            282        544,696  

  Projects uncomplete 

and equipment to be 

inspected 

      635,172        563,762              -  (      55,454)         2,165      1,145,645  

    Subtotal  $ 14,072,241   $  1,262,781  ($    254,828)  $    214,781  ($        128)  $ 15,294,847         
Accumulated depreciation  Balance, begin   Additions   Disposals   Transfers   Net difference   Balance, end  

  Buildings  $    693,606   $     96,689  ($        450)  $          -  ($        858)  $    788,987  

  Machinery equipment     2,398,492        361,689  (      97,857)             -          2,127      2,664,451  

  Transportation 

equipment 

       21,615          4,750              -              -             30         26,395  

  Utility equipment        19,508          3,125              -              -              1         22,634  

  Other equipment       266,599        133,568  (     148,780)             -            140        251,527  

    Subtotal  $  3,399,820   $    599,821  ($    247,087)  $          -   $      1,440   $  3,753,994  

  Total  $ 10,672,421  
    

 $ 11,540,853  

 

1. The major components of the buildings of the Group, including structure and elevators,  are depreciated for 50 years and 

6 years respectively.  

2. For information about real estate, plants, and equipment as collaterals, please refer to Note 8 in detail  
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3. Capitalization amount of interest  expense, and interest  rate range for real 

estates,  plants, and equipment:   
 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Capitalization amount  $     20,994   $     16,688  

Interest rate range 1.17% 1.20% 

 

(9)  Lease transaction as a Lessee  

1. The subject assets of the Group lease include land, buildings, official  

vehicles, etc.  The lease period usually ranges from 1 to 38 years.  A lease 

contract is an individual negotiation and contains a variety of different te rms 

and conditions. Except that the leased assets cannot be used as collateral for 

loans, there are no other restrictions.  

2. The lease period of the photocopiers leased by the Group shall not exceed 12 

months.  

3.  The book values of the right -to-use assets and the depreciation expenses 

recognized information are as follows:  
  December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  
  Book value   Book value  

Lands  $           285,155   $           294,353  

Buildings               18,558                21,991  

Transportation equipment                  375                   696  

Other equipment                    -                     5  
  $           304,088   $           317,045  

 
  Year 2021   Year 2020  
  Depreciation   Depreciation  

Lands  $             7,905   $             7,916  

Buildings                7,361                10,995  

Transportation equipment                  321                 4,323  

Other equipment                    5                    28  
  $            15,592   $            23,262  

 

The changes in the right -to-use assets of the Group in the year 2021, and 

2020 are as follows:  
  Year 2021  

 
 Lands   Buildings  

 Transportation 

equipment  

 Other 

equipment   Total  

At January 1  $ 294,353   $  21,991   $     696   $       5   $ 317,045  

Additions          -       4,009           -           -       4,009  

Lease 

modification          -          57           -           -          57  

Depreciation (    7,905) (    7,361) (      321) (        5) (   15,592) 

Net difference (    1,293) (      138)          -           -  (    1,431) 

At December 31  $ 285,155   $  18,558   $     375   $       -   $ 304,088  
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  Year 2020  

 
 Lands   Buildings  

 Transportation 

equipment  

 Other 

equipment   Total  

At January 1  $ 304,483   $  43,817   $     338   $      33   $ 348,671  

Additions          -           -       4,681           -       4,681  

Lease 

modification (    3,523) (   10,776)          -           -  (   14,299) 

Depreciation (    7,916) (   10,995) (    4,323) (       28) (   23,262) 

Net difference      1,309  (       55)          -           -       1,254  

At December 31  $ 294,353   $  21,991   $     696   $       5   $ 317,045  

 

4. The increase in the right -to-use assets of the Group in  the Year 2020 and 

2019 were NT 4,009 thousand and NT 4,681 thousand respectively.  

5. Information about the profit and loss for the lease contracts are as follows:  
  Year 2021   Year 2020  

Items affecting current profit and loss   
Interest expense on lease liability  $             4,208   $             4,780  

Expenses for short-term lease 

contracts               10,302                 9,162  

Lease modification benefits                   57                   320  

 

6. The total  lease cash outflows of the Group in 2021 and 2020 were NT 27,985 

thousand and 34,078 thousand respectively.  

(10)  Lease transaction as a Lessor  

1. The subject  assets leased by the Group include buildings, machinery, and 

equipment.  The lease contract  period usually ranges from 3 to 20 years. The 

lease contract  is  based on a separate agreement and contains various terms 

and conditions.  

2. The benefits of the Group based on the business leases recognized in the year  

2021 and 2020 are as follows:  
  Year 2021   Year 2020  

Rental income  $            21,911   $            19,454  

Rental income recognized as 

variable lease payments                1,616                 1,280  

 

3. The analysis of the expiry date of payment of the Group ’s operating lease is  

as follows:  

Duration  

 December 31, 

2021    Duration  

 December 31, 

2020  

 Year 2021   $      21,911    Year 2020  $       7,569  

 Year 2022          14,421    Year 2021           3,438  

 Year 2023          11,963    Year 2022             341  

 Year 2024           6,005    Year 2023              50  

 Year 2025              50    Year 2024              50  

 Year 2026              50    Year 2025              50  

 After Year 2027            500    After Year 2026            550  

Total  $      54,900   Total  $      12,048  
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(11)  Investment properties   
 Year 2021   Year 2020  

  Lands   Lands  

At January 1   
Cost  $                 -   $                 -  

Accumulated loss                    -                     -   
 $                 -   $                 -     

At January 1  $                 -   $                 -  

Reclassification(Note)               30,387                     -  

At December 31  $            30,387   $                 -     
At December 31   
Cost  $            30,387   $                 -  

Accumulated loss                    -                     -   
 $            30,387   $                 -  

 

Note: Transferred from “Real Estate, Plants and Equipment”.  

1. Rental  income and direct operational expenses of the investment properties:  

  Year 2021   Year 2020  

Direct operating expenses 

incurred by investment 

properties that do not generate 

rental income in the current 

period  $               186   $                 -  

 

2. As of December 31, 2021 the fair value of investment properties held by 

the Group was NT 32,986 thousand, which belongs to Level 3 fair value 

measurements was adjusted by each individual factor based on the recent 

transaction price of comparable targets similar to the location of 

investment properties, and other considerations such as location, scale and 

purpose, etc.  

(12)  Other non-current assets  
  December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

Prepayment for equipment  $            36,464   $           450,755  

Prepayment for lands              207,240                87,818  

Prepayment for construction                8,771                33,176  

Refundable deposits                3,617                 7,646  

Other non-current assets               57,406                46,243  
  $           313,498   $           625,638  

 

1. The Company acquired land number #1088, Guang zheng Section, Dali 

District,  Taichung City,  with a book value of NT 88,624 thousand. The 

land was registered as Special  Agriculture Zone, Grade D Construction 

Land and Homeland Conservation Zone on June 21, 2 021. The transfer of 

ownership registration was completed on July 21, 2021.  

2. For information on other non-current assets as collateral,  please refer to 

Note 8 for details.  
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(13)  Short-term loan 

Property of loan  
 December 31, 2021  

Rate range Collaterals 

Bank loan    

  Secured loan  $       132,200  0.90%~1.28% 

Investment, plant, 

buildings, machinery 

and equipment using 

the equity method 

  Credit loan        1,188,139  0.59%~3.05% -  

 $     1,320,339    
 

Property of loan   December 31, 2020  Rate range Collaterals 

Bank loan    

  Secured loan  $       145,963  0.85%~0.92% 

Investment, plant, 

buildings, machinery 

and equipment using 

the equity method 

  Credit loan        1,942,790  0.68%~3.05% -  

 $     2,088,753    
 

(14)  Short-term notes & bills payable 

Bills finance company  December 31, 2021  Rate of issuance  Collaterals  

Land Bills  $       960,000  0.58%  Note 1  

Mega Bills          100,000  0.92%  

China Bills          200,000  0.92%  

  $     1,260,000    

 

Bills finance company  December 31, 2020  Rate of issuance  Collaterals  

E.Sun Bills  $       300,000  1.39%  Note 2  

Mega Bills          100,000  0.92%  

China Bills          200,000  0.92%  

  $       600,000    

 

Note 1: Land Bills credit line is the combined credit l ine from the Syndicated 

Loans of Land Bank of Taiwan. The combined book value is  NT 

960,000 thousand.  

Note 2:  E.Sun Bills credit l ine is the combined credit  line from the 

Syndicated Loans of E.Sun Bank. The combined book value is NT 

300,000 thousand.  
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(15)  Other payables  
  December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

Salary payable  $            96,366   $            86,827  

Employee’s compensation and 

remuneration payable to directors 

              12,100                10,237  

Equipment payment payable              208,380                91,933  

Freight payable              239,709                50,718  

Other              307,672               197,998   
 $           864,227   $           437,713  

 

(16)  Long-term loan 

Loan type 

Loan period and repayment 

method Rate range Collaterals  December 31, 2021  

Syndicated secured 

loans- 

Land Bank 

Since March 24, 2024, every 6 

months, repayment in 

installments until March 24, 

2029. 

1.79% Land, plants, 

office 

buildings and 

machinery 

equipment 

 $    850,000  

Secured loan Sequentially due before May, 

2039. 

(Repayments in installments) 

0.00%~5.31% Land, 

buildings, 

plants and 

machinery 

equipment 

    2,897,106  

Credit loan Sequentially due before August, 

2026. 

(Repayments in installments) 

0.00%~1.21% - 

    2,636,483   

       6,383,589  

 Less: Long-term loans due within one year or one operating cycle (listed other current 

liabilities) (   1,159,609) 

 Less: Government grant discount 
  

(      50,855)  

    $  5,173,125  

 

Property of loan  

Loan period and repayment 

method Rate range Collaterals  December 31, 2020  

Syndicated secured 

loans- 

E.Sun Bank 

Since July 15, 2016, every 6 

months, repayment in 

installments until July 22, 

2022. 

1.79% Plants, office 

buildings and 

machinery 

equipment 

 $  1,333,704  

Secured loan Sequentially due before May, 

2039 

(Repayments in installments) 

0.00%~5.25% Land, buildings, 

plants and 

machinery 

equipment 

    3,530,191  

Credit loan Sequentially due before 

August, 2026. 

(Repayments in installments) 

0.10%~1.21% - 

    2,382,070   

       7,245,965  

 Less: Long-term loans due within one year or one operating cycle (listed other current 

liabilities) (   2,156,481) 

 Less: Government grant discount 
  

(      46,789)  

    $  5,042,695  

 
1.(1) One March 24, 2021, the Company signed a Syndication Loan Contract  with 

a group of banks formed by Taiwan Land Bank and E.Sun Bank, etc. ,  with a  

total  credit  line of NT 5,000,000 thousand,  and Taiwan Land Bank as the 
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managing bank, for repay loans to  financial  insti tutions and to enrich mid -

term working capital .  As of December 31, 2021, the allocated amount was 

NT 850,000 thousand, and the undrawn amount was NT 4,150,000 thousand.  

In addit ion to other relevant regulations, the above -mentioned syndicat ion 

loan contract  includes the following restrict ions:  during the credit  period,  

the following financial  rat ios shall  be maintained, and be reexamined in the 

financial  statements  verified by the accountant every year:  

A. The current ratio [current assets/( current l iabil i t ies minus the one -year  

maturity amount of the credit  l ine and amount of the short -term 

commercial  papers payable of the credit  l ine)] shall  keep at  100% 

(inclusive) or more.  

B. The financial  l iabili t ies ratio [ (Short -term loans+short -term commercial  

papers payable + one -year  maturity amount of long-term loans+corporate 

bonds+long-term loan)/tangible assets  net  value] shall  keep below 200% 

(inclusive).  

C.  Tangible assets (net  value minus intangible assets):  shall  not less than 

NT 4 bil l ion.  

(2) During the credit  period and the provisions of the syndication loan contract ,  

the Company must  follow specific financial  rat ios at  the end of  the year  and 

half  of the year,  such as the current ratio, debt to equity ratio, and interest 

protection multiple requirements.  As of December 31, 2021, the Company 

has not violated the above restrict ions.  

2.  On July 18 and December 13, 2019, the Group signed a loan contract  at  low -

interest  rate with First  Bank to enrich mid -term working capi tal  and for 

payments of  machinery equipment purchases. The loan interest  is calculated and 

paid monthly at  the two-year fixed deposit  f lexible interest  rate  of Chunghwa 

Post Co.,  Ltd.,  with an annual interest  rate of 0.1%, and will  be adjusted when 

the pricing interest  rate is changed.  

(17)  Government Grant  
The Group obtained government  preferential  interest  rate loans from Taiwan 

Business Bank, First  Bank, and Taiwan Cooperative Bank of the “Action Plan for  

Welcoming Overseas Taiwanese Businesses to Return to Invest  in Taiwan ”. As of  

December  31, 2021,  the total  amount  was NT 2,399,600 thousand is  used for 

operating turnover, purchasing machinery and equipment,  and building factories.  

The loan will  be repaid from August 2021 to November  2029. Based on the market 

interest  rate at  the t ime of 1.40%~ 1.50%, the total  fair  value of the borrowing is  

estimated to be NT 1,749,128 thousand,  and the difference between the amount 

obtained and the fair  value of the borrowing is NT 50,855 thousand, which is  

regarded as  a government low-interest  grant and recognized as Deferred income 

(l isted in the table “Other non-current l iabil i t ies”).  The deferred income that  

exceeds the paid-in period shall  be transferred to other income in a straight l ine 

method.  

(18)  Pension 
1.(1) The Company and i ts domestic subs idiaries have established Defined benefit  

ret irement  measures  in accordance with the provisions of the “Labor  

Standards Act”, which are applicable to service years of al l  regular  

employees before the implementation of the “Labor Pension Regulat ions” on 

July 1,  2005,  and the follow-up service years of employees who choose to 

comply the Labor Standards Act after the implementation of the “Labor  

Pension Regulations”.  For employees who meet the retirement  conditions, 

the pension payment is calculated based on t he length of service and the 

average salary of the 6 months before retirement.  Two bases are given for  

each year  of service within 15 years  (inclusive),  and one base is given for  
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each year of service over 15 years ,  but the cumulative maximum is  l imited 

to 45 bases . The Company allocates 2% of  the total  salary per month as the 

retirement fund, which is deposited in Bank of Taiwan by a special  account  

named the Labor Pension Fund Supervisory Committee. In addi t ion, the 

Company should calculate the amount of pensions for those who meet the 

statutory retirement conditions in the next year before the end of each year  

and make a provision for the difference before the end of March of the 

following year.  
(2) The amounts recognized on the balance sheet are as follow s: 

  December 31, 

2021  

 December 31, 

2020  

The present value of net defined benefit 

obligations  $    189,564   $    201,364  

Fair value of project assets (     121,096) (     117,687) 

Net defined benefit liabilities  $     68,468   $     83,677  

 

(3) The changes to the present value of defined benefit obligations are as 

follows:  

  Present value of defined 

benefit obligations  

 Fair value of project 

assets  

 Net defined benefit 

liabilities  

Year 2021 
   

Balance on Jan. 1  $       201,364  ($       117,687)  $     83,677  

Current service cost              827                 -            827  

Interest expense (income)              584  (            345)           239   
         202,775  (        118,032)        84,743  

Remeasurement: 
   

Planned asset earning 

(Exclude money in 

interest income or 

expenses) 

               -  (          1,806) (       1,806) 

Changes by 

demographic 

assumptions impact 

             407                 -            407  

Changes by financial 

assumptions impact 

(            311)                -  (         311) 

Changes by plan 

reduction 

(          5,400)                -  (       5,400) 

Adjustment by 

experience 

           1,012                 -          1,012  

 
(          4,292) (          1,806) (       6,098) 

Provision to the pension 

fund 

               -  (         10,177) (      10,177) 

Pension payment (          8,919)            8,919              -  

Balance on Dec. 31  $       189,564  ($       121,096)  $     68,468  
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  Present value of defined 

benefit obligations  

 Fair value of project 

assets  

 Net defined benefit 

liabilities  

Year 2020 
   

Balance on Jan. 1  $       225,310  ($       131,736)  $     93,574  

Current service cost            1,314                 -          1,314  

Interest expense 

(income) 

           1,413  (            833)           580  

 
         228,037  (        132,569)        95,468  

Remeasurement: 
   

Planned asset earning 

(Exclude money in 

interest income or 

expenses) 

               -  (          4,259) (       4,259) 

Changes by 

demographic 

assumptions impact 

              32                 -             32  

Changes by financial 

assumptions impact 

           5,526                 -          5,526  

Changes by plan 

reduction 

(            155)                -  (         155) 

Adjustment by 

experience 

(          3,031)                -  (       3,031) 

 
           2,372  (          4,259) (       1,887) 

Provision to the pension 

fund 

               -  (          9,904) (       9,904) 

Pension payment (         29,045)           29,045              -  

Balance on Dec. 31  $       201,364  ($       117,687)  $     83,677  

(4) The assets of the Company’s defined benefit  pension fund are i tems within 

the scope and amount of entrusted business projects stipulated by the Bank 

of Taiwan in accordance with Article 6 of the “Regulations for Revenues,  

Expenditures, Safeguard and Util ization of the Labor  Retirement  Fund ”. The 

annual investment plan of the fund (that  is,  deposits in domestic a nd 

overseas financial  inst i tutions, investment in domestic and overseas l ist ings,  

over-the-counter or  pr ivate  equity securit ies,  investment in domestic and 

overseas real  estate securit ization products,  etc.)  to handle entrusted 

business, and related operat ion are supervised by the Pension Fund 

Supervision Committee. When using the fund, the minimum income of i ts  

annual f inal  accounting distribution shall  not be lower than the income 

calculated based on the two-year  t ime deposi t  interest  rate of  local  banks in  

Taiwan. If  i t  is  insufficient,  i t  shall  be supplemented by the State Treasury 

after approval by the competent authority. As of December 31, 2021, and 

2020, the fair  value of the fund’s total  assets,  please refer to the report  

published by the Government  on the annual use of labor pension funds.  

(5) The summary of the actuarial  assumptions regarding pension payments is as  

follows:  
 

 Year 2021   Year 2020  
 

 The Company   Subsidiaries   The Company   Subsidiaries  

Discount rate 0.70% 0.65% 0.30% 0.30% 

Future salary increase 

rate 
3.00% 2.00% 3.00% 2.00% 

 
The hypothesis of the future mortali ty rate is based on the fif th empirical  

l ife chart  of the Taiwan Life Insurance.  
The analysis of the defined benefit  plan affected by changes in the main 
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actuarial  assumptions adopted is as follows:  
  Discount rate   Future salary increase rate  
  +0.25%   -0.25%    +0.25%     -0.25%   
December 31, 2021   

  

Impact on the present value defined benefit obligations ($  3,482)  $  3,605   $  3,517  ($  3,415) 
December 31, 2020   

  

Impact on the present value defined benefit obligations ($  3,973)  $  4,120   $  4,003  ($  3,882) 

 
The above sensit ivity analysis is based on the analysis of the impact of a 

single hypothesis change while other assumptions remain unchanged. In 

practice, many changes in assumptions may be relevant.  The sensit ivity 

analysis system is consistent with the calculation method of the net  pension 

l iabil i t ies of assets and l iabil i t ies.  

(6) The Company’s estimated payment for the retirement plan in the year 2022 

is NT 8,717 thousand.  

(7) As of December  31, 2021, the weighted average duration of the retirement  

plan was 6 years.  An analysis  of the grant  date of the retirement  payment  is 

as follows:  
Less than 1 year  $            21,417  

1-2 years                9,948  

2-5 years               66,527  

More than 5 years              100,547  
  $           198,439  

2.(1) Since July 1, 2005, the Company and i ts domestic subsidiaries have 

established a defined contribution plan procedures in accordance with the 

“Labor Pension Act”,  which are applicable to domestic employees. The 

Company applies the labor retirement pension system stipulated by the 

“Labor Pension Act” for employees’ choice, with a monthly contribution of 

6% of the salary to the  employee’s personal account of The Bureau of Labor  

Insurance, and the payment depends on the employee ’s personal pension.  

The amount  of the special  account and accumulated income is received in 

the form of a  monthly pension or a lump -sum pension.  

(2) the regular employees of HOTATECH, INC. who have served for more than 

one year shall  adopt a  defined contribution plan. Employees can withdraw 

within 15% of the salary into an independent retirement fund account.  

Correspondently, the Company should withdraw a certain proportion of the 

employee’s withdrawal amount and recognized i t  as the current expense.  

(3) In accordance with China ’s Retirement  and Pension System, the subsidiary 

company in China draws different  proportions of retirement  benef its each 

month according to the level of employees, and allocates them to the 

authority designated by the Government.  After the fund is al located, i t  wil l  

be handled by the Government  labor  department.  No matter  the fund is 

insufficient or excess, i t  is  irrelevant to the su bsidiary company.  

(4) In the year  2021 and 2020,  the Company recognized the cost  of retirement  

payment according to the above -mentioned method are NT 36,319 thousand 

and NT 32,166 thousand respectively.  

(19)  Share-based payments  

1. The Group’s share-based payments of 2020 are as follows:  

Types of agreements   Grant date   Grant amount  

 Contract 

period  

 Vesting 

conditions  

Cash capital increase to retain 

employee subscription 

December 15, 2020 1,393 units  NA   Immediately 

vested  

 

  For the year ended December 31, 2021: None.  

2. The Group used the stock closing market prices as fair value measurement 
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for the transaction of share -based payments at  the grant date.  The relevant 

information are as follows:           
Types 

of 

agreeme

nts Grant date 

Stoc

k 

value 

 Strike 

Price 

Expected 

volatility 

Expected 

duration 

Expected 

dividend 

Risk-free 

interest rate 

Per unit fair 

value 
Cash capital 

increase to 

retain 

employee 

subscription 

Dec. 15, 

2020 
105    90      -      -      -      -        15  

 

3. Expenses arising from share -based payment transaction are as follow:   
 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Equity-settled  $                 -   $            20,895  

(20)  Share capital  

1.  As of December 31, 2021, Company’s authorized capital  was 

$3,500,000,000 and the paid-in capital  was $2,795,175,000, consisting of 

279,518 thousand shares of common stock with a par value of $10 (in  

dollars) per share.  As of December 31, 2021, total  outstanding shares were 

279,518 thousand.  

The Company’s common stock shares outstanding  (shares in thousands) at  

the beginning and at  the end of the year are as follows:   
 Year 2021   Year 2020  

At January 1              254,518               254,957  

Cash capital increase               25,000                     -  

Stock repurchase (Note)                    -  (                439) 

At December 31              279,518               254,518  

 
Note :  The Company was approved by the reso lution of the Board of  Directors to  

decrease  in treasury s tock of  439 thousand shares.  The record da te o f  capi ta l  

reduct ion for  the decrease  in  treasury s tock was  August  14,  2020 ,  and  the  

al tera t ion registrat ion had been made on August  27,  2020.  

2. The Company was approved by the resolution of the Board of Directors on 

September  10,  2020 to issue common stock of 25,000 thousand shares by cash 

capital  increase, with a par value of $10 and the issuance at  premium of NT$90 

per share, that  had been approved and effected by the competent authority on 

October 8, 2020.  The record of the cash capital  increase w as February 1,  2021,  

and that  the alteration registration had been made on February 26, 2021.  

3. Treasury stock 

(1) For considerations of Company management,  by the resolution of Board of  

Directors on March 26,  2020, it  is  decided to buy back the Company stock of  

the number of 6,000 thousand shares with  the buyback price  between NT$60 

and NT$90 from March 27,  2020 to  May 26, 2020. As of December 31, 2020 ,  

439 thousand shares have been bought back by the Company with  the total  

amount of NT$35,010,000. The C ompany was approved by the resolution of the 

Board of Directors  to  decrease in  t reasury s tock of 439 thousand shares  on 

August 13, 2020.  The record date of capita l reduction for the decrease in  

treasury s tock was August 14, 2020, and the alterat ion registr a tion had been 

made on August  27, 2020.  

(2)  According to the Securit ies  and Exchange Act,  the number of  shares  bought  

back may not  exceed ten percent of the total  number issued and outs tanding 

shares of the Company. The total amount of the shares bought ba ck may not  

exceed the amount of  reta ined earnings plus  premium on capita l s tock plus  

real ized capital  reserve.  

(3) The shares bought back by the Company in accordance with the Securit ies and 

Exchange Act shal l not  be pledged. Before transfer,  the sharehold er’s r ights  
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shal l not be enjoyed.  

(4) Pursuant to the Securit ies  and Exchange Act ,  where the buyback is for  

transferr ing shares  to i ts employees shal l be transferred within five years  from 

the date of buyback.  The shares not transferred within the said t im e l imit shal l  

be deemed as  not issued by the Company,  and amendment registra tion shal l be  

processed.  Where the buyback is  required to  maintain  the Company ’s  credit  and 

shareholders ’ rights and interests,  and the shares so purchased are cancelled 

for which amendment regis trat ion shall be effected within six  months from the 

date of buyback.  

(21)  Capital  reserve 
  December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

May be used to offset a deficit, 

distribute cash dividends or capital 

surplus   
Additional paid-in capital  $         3,804,533   $         1,877,208  

May be used to offset a deficit only   

Changes in ownership interests in 

subsidiaries 
               5,667                 5,667  

Gain from asset disposition                  309                   309  

May not be used for any purpose   

Cash capital increase to retain 

employee subscription 
              23,295                23,295  

 
1. According to the Company Act,  except for offset ting a defic i t  from capita l 

reserve of  the income derived from the issuance  of  new shares a t  a premium or 

the income from endowments received by the Company, where the Company 

incurs  no loss,  i t  may dis tr ibute by issuing new shares  which shal l be 

dis tr ibutable as dividend shares to i ts original shareholders in proport ion to the 

number of shares being held by each of them or  by cash.  The Securi t ies and 

Exchange Act also provides that when capita l reserve is capital ized, the 

combined amount of any port ions capita l ized in any one year may not exceed ten 

percent of  paid -in capital .  The Company shal l not  use the capita l reserved to  

make good i ts capita l loss,  unless the surplus reserve is insuff ic ient to make 

good such loss.  

2.  An amount transferred to capita l reserve from the income derived from the 

issuance of new shares  at  a premium in the preceding paragraph,  may not  be 

capita lized until  the f iscal  year after  the competent  authori ty for  company 

registra tions approves regis trat ion.  

Changes in capital  reserve are as fol lows:  
  Year 2021   

 Additional paid-in capital   Stock option  

 Gain from asset 

disposition  

 Changes in ownership interests in 

subsidiaries  Total  

Balance, begin  $ 1,877,208   $23,295   $   309   $      5,667   $ 1,906,479  
Cash capital increase    2,000,000         -         -              -     2,000,000  
Capital reserve to 
distribute cash 

dividends 
(     72,675)        -         -              -  (     72,675) 

Balance, end  $ 3,804,533   $23,295   $   309   $      5,667   $ 3,833,804  

 
  Year 2020   

 Additional paid-in capital   Stock option  

 Gain from asset 

disposition  

 Changes in ownership interests in 

subsidiaries  Total  

Balance, begin  $ 1,907,828   $ 2,400   $   309   $      5,667   $ 1,916,204  
Treasury stock disposition (    30,620)       -        -            -  (    30,620) 
Cash capital increase            -    20,895         -              -        20,895  
Balance, end  $ 1,877,208   $23,295   $   309   $      5,667   $ 1,906,479  

 
3. By the resolution of  the Board of Directors on March 17, 2021, and approval  

of the Shareholder’s Meeting on July 20,  2021, the Company shall  al locate 
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cash dividends from capital  reserve with a  dis tribution of $0.26 per share and 

the total  dividends wil l  be NT$72,675,000.  

(22)  Retained earnings  
1. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, when there is net  profit  for  

each fiscal  year,  except for income tax payment, the Company shall  offset  a 

deficit  in priori ty, and set  aside 10% of the balance as legal  reserve.  After 

sett ing aside in accordance with the laws and regulations or as reversal  of 

special  reserve, “preferred stock is distributed preferably from the current  

year shall  distribute and accumulated unappropriated dividends f rom each 

previous fiscal  year.” When there is profit  for each fiscal  year,  the Company 

shall  set  aside not  less than 2% as employees ’ compensation and not more 

than 5% as bonus to directors;  the rest plus unappropriated earnings of the 

last  f iscal  year shall  be proposed the surpl us earning distribution and 

presented to the shareholders ’ meeting for  approval.  

2.  The Company dividend policy is as follows: taking into consideration of the 

Company capital  demand and sound financial  structure, and cooperating with 

business growth, the board of directors shall  prepare the proposal of surplus 

earning distribution taking into consideration of the Company profitabil i ty 

and the business operation demand, and report  to the shareholders meetings  

for resolution. The proposal of surplus earning distribution prepared by the 

board of directors shall  have total  dividends distributed between 30% and 

80% of the current year earnings, provided however, the ration for cash 

dividend shall  not be lower than 20% of total  distribution.  

3. Legal reserve can only be used to cover accumulated deficit  or to issue new 

stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their  share ownership;  where 

legal reserve is distributed by issuing new shares or by cash, only the portion 

of legal reserve which exceeds 25 percent  of the paid-in capital  may be 

distributed.  

4.(1) In accordance with the regulations, the Company shall  set  aside special  

reserve from the debit  balance on other equi ty i tems at  the balance sheet 

date before distributing earnings. When debit  balance on oth er equity 

i tems is  reversed subsequently, the reversed amount  could be included in 

the distributable earnings.  

(2) At the t ime of init ial  application of IFRS, special  reserve set  aside,  

referred in Rule No. Financial -Supervisory-Securit ies -Issuing-

1010012865 issued on April  6,  2012, shall  be transferred into retained 

earnings from unrealized revaluation increments and cumulative 

translation adjustment under equity upon the acceptance of  application of  

IFRS 1 exemption. However,  the Group has negative number  in net  effect  

of retained earnings, special  reserve is no need to be set  aside.  

5. The appropriations of earnings for 2021 and 2020 had been resolved at  the 

Board of Directors on March 16, 2022 and the shareholders ’ meeting on July 

20, 2021, respectively.  Details are summarized below:  
  Year 2021   Year 2020  
  Amount   Dividends per share (in dollars)   Amount   Dividends per share (in dollars)  

Capital reserve to distribute cash dividends  $      -   $       -   $  72,675   $    0.26  
Legal reserve    35,326       29,489   
Special reserve    12,118            -   
Cash dividends   381,541        1.37     234,794        0.84  

 
6. Please refer to Note 6(29) for  employees ’ compensation and directors ’ 

remuneration.  
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(23)  Other equity items  
  Year 2021  

 

 Financial statements 

translation differences 

of foreign operations 

 Debit instrument unrealized 
valuation profit (loss) measured at 

fair value through other 

comprehensive income 

 Equity instrument unrealized 
valuation profit (loss) measured at 

fair value through other 

comprehensive income  

     Total  
At January 1 ($   42,421) ($        10,560)  $        17,865  ($ 35,116) 
Evaluation adjusted 

    

– Group           -             1,514             1,436      2,950  
– Associates           -                 -                 -          -  
Valuation adjustments transfer 

into retained earnings 
          -                 -  (          3,360) (   3,360) 

– Associates           -                 -  (         19,202) (  19,202) 
Valuation adjustments transfer 

into retained earnings 
          -                 -  (          2,911) (   2,911) 

Differences for foreign currency 
translation: 

    

– Group (     8,129)                -                 -  (   8,129) 
– Tax for Group       1,361                 -                 -      1,361  
– Associates       4,031                 -                 -      4,031  
– Tax for associates          22                 -                 -         22  
At December 31 ($   45,136) ($         9,046) ($         6,172) ($ 60,354) 

 
  Year 2020  

 

 Financial statements 
translation differences 

of foreign operations  

 Debit instrument unrealized 

valuation profit (loss) measured at 
fair value through other 

comprehensive income 

 Equity instrument unrealized 

valuation profit (loss) measured at 
fair value through other 

comprehensive income  

     Total  
At January 1 ($   32,179) ($        20,881)  $         4,824  ($ 48,236) 

Evaluation adjusted 

  
               -  

 

–Group           -            10,321            16,061     26,382  
–Associates           -                 -             4,416      4,416  
Valuation adjustments transfer 
into retained earnings 

          -                 -  (          7,436) (   7,436) 

Differences for foreign currency 

translation: 

    

–Group (     8,145)                -                 -  (   8,145) 
– Tax for Group       2,192                 -                 -      2,192  
–Associates (     4,324)                -                 -  (   4,324) 
– Tax for associates          35                 -                 -         35  
At December 31 ($   42,421) ($        10,560)  $        17,865  ($ 35,116) 
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(24)  Operating revenue 
  Year 2021   Year 2020  
Revenue from contracts with customers  $         6,686,364   $         5,211,042  

 

1. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers  

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods at a point in time 

in the following major product lines and geographical  regions: 

  Year 2021  

  Transmission components for car  
  USA   China   Taiwan   Other regions   Total  

Revenue from 

segments 

 $4,028,709   $822,225   $418,351  $1,609,798  $6,879,083  

Revenue from 

internal 

segments 

transaction (    27,920) (  94,658) (  70,141)          -  (   192,719) 

Revenue from 

external 

customer 

contracts  $4,000,789   $727,567   $348,210  $1,609,798  $6,686,364  

Revenue recognition time 
  

  

Revenue 

recognition at a 

point of time  $4,000,789   $727,567   $348,210  $1,609,798  $6,686,364  

 
(1)USA： HOTA Industr ial  NT$3,945,771,000 and o thers NT$55,018,000.  

(2)China： HOTA Industr ia l  NT$328,463,000 and o thers NT$399,104,000.  

(3)Taiwan： HOTA Industr ial  NT$302,771,000 and others NT$45,439,000.  

(4)Others： HOTA Industr ial  NT$1,609,798,000.  

  Year 2020  

  Transmission components for car  
  USA   China   Taiwan   Other regions   Total  

Revenue from 

segments 

 $3,744,528   $573,994   $300,056   $ 692,940   $5,311,518  

Revenue from 

internal 

segments 

transaction (    23,995) (  18,171) (  58,310)          -  (   100,476) 

Revenue from 

external 

customer 

contracts  $3,720,533   $555,823   $241,746   $ 692,940   $5,211,042  

Revenue recognition time 
  

  

Revenue 

recognition at a 

point of time  $3,720,533   $555,823   $241,746   $ 692,940   $5,211,042  

 

(1)USA： HOTA Industr ial  NT$3,683,173,000 and o thers NT$ 37,360,000.  

(2)China： HOTA Industr ia l  NT$ 184,870 ,000 and o thers NT$ 370,953 ,000.  

(3)Taiwan： HOTA Industr ial  NT$ 202,262 ,000 and others NT$ 39,484,000.  

(4)Others： HOTA Industr ial  NT$ 692,940 ,000.  
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2. Contract l iabilities  
  December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020   January 1, 2020  

 Contract liabilities-Receipts in 

advance  $        244   $          -   $          -  

 

(25)  Interest income  

 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Interest income from bank 

deposits 

 $               860   $             1,819  

Interest income financial assets 

measured at amortized cost 

                  22                   259  

Other interest income                   67                 2,725  
 

 $               949   $             4,803  

 

(26)  Other income  

 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Rental income  $            23,527   $            20,734  

Dividend revenue                4,365                 4,093  

Government grants income               33,923                58,944  

Other income－other               39,320                27,039  
 

 $           101,135   $           110,810  

 

(27)  Other gains and losses   

 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Gains on disposals of property, 

plant and equipment 

 $             5,630   $             2,494  

Foreign exchange losses (             64,914) (             80,837) 

Lease modification benefits                   57                   276  

Other                    -  (                449) 
 

($            59,227) ($            78,516) 

 

(28)  Finance costs   

 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Interest expense from bank 

borrowings 

 $           106,702   $           120,199  

Less: Qualifying capitalization of 

interest 

(             20,994) (             16,688) 

Subtotal               85,708               103,511  

Interest expense-lease liabilities                4,208                 4,780  

Finance costs  $            89,916   $           108,291  
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(29)  Expenses by nature (including employee benefit expense)  
  Year 2021   Year 2020  

Employee benefit expense   

Salaries and wages  $           770,113   $           713,019  

Labor and health insurance               81,368                76,536  

Pension               34,926                33,905  

Other personnel expenses               65,281                55,925  
 

 $           951,688   $           879,385  

Depreciation on property, plant 

and equipment  $           559,415   $           599,821  

Depreciation on right-of-use assets  $            15,592   $            23,262  

Amortization  $             6,373   $            10,067  

 

1.The numbers of employees of the Group for 2021 and 2020 were 1,324 

and 1,279 respectively,  and among them, directors who were not 

concurrent employees, were 10 and 10, respectively.  

2.In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, a ratio  

of distributable profit of the current year,  after covering accumulated 

losses,  shall be distributed as employees ’ compensation and directors’ 

remuneration. The ratio shall  not be less than 2% for employees ’ 

compensation and shall not be higher than 5% for directors ’ 

remuneration.  

3.For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, employee ’s 

compensation and directors ’ remuneration were accrued at as follows:   
 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Employees’ compensation  $             8,500   $             6,716  

Directors’ remuneration                3,600                 3,521  
 

 $            12,100   $            10,237  

 

The aforementioned amounts were recognized in salary expenses.  

The employees’ compensation and directors ’ remuneration were 

estimated and accrued based on 2.04% and 0.86% of distributable profit 

of current year for the year ended December 31, 2021. The employe es’ 

compensation and directors ’ remuneration resolved by the Board of 

Directors were $8,500,000 and $3,600,000, and the employees ’ 

compensation will be distributed in the form of cash.  

Employees’ compensation and directors ’ remuneration of 2020 as 

resolved by the Board of Directors were in agreement with those 

amounts recognized in the 2020 financial statements.  

Information about employees’ compensation and directors ’ 

remuneration of the Company as resolved by the Board of Directors will  

be posted in the “Market Observation Post System” at the website of the 

Taiwan Stock Exchange.  
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(30)  Income tax 

1. Income tax expense  

(1) Components of income tax expense:  
  Year 2021   Year 2020  

Current tax:   

Current tax on profits for the year  $           95,085   $           50,883  

Surtax on undistributed retained earnings               1,530                3,376  

Tax effect of investment tax credits (            26,749) (            32,127) 

Prior year income tax underestimation 

(overestimation) 

(               365)               2,211  

Total current tax              69,501               24,343  

Deferred tax:   

Origination and reversal of temporary 

differences 
(             6,344)              14,145  

Total deferred tax (             6,344)              14,145  

 Income tax expense  $           63,157   $           38,488  

 

(2) Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income:   

 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Exchange difference on 

translation of foreign 

operations 

 $            1,383   $            2,227  

Remeasurements of defined 

benefit obligation 

(             1,147) (               348) 

  $              236   $            1,879  

 

2. Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit   

 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Tax calculated based on profit before tax and 

statutory tax rate 
 $           86,971   $           72,074  

Tax effect disallowed by tax regulation 

              1,767                  909  

Exempt from income tax pursuant to the Income 

Tax Act                   3  (             7,955) 

Tax effect of investment tax credits 
(            26,749) (            32,127) 

Prior year income tax underestimation 

(overestimation) (               365)               2,211  

Surtax on undistributed retained earnings 
              1,530                3,376  

 Income tax expense  $           63,157   $           38,488  
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3. Amounts of deferred tax assets and l iabili ties as a result of temporary 

differences and tax are as follows:  

  Year 2021  

   Recognized  Recognized in other   

  January 1   in profit or loss   comprehensive income   December 31  

Deferred tax assets:     

－Temporary differences:     
  Losses on foreign long-term equity 

investments  $ 14,869  ($ 2,128)  $      -   $ 12,741  

  Allowance for inventory valuation 

and obsolescence losses    17,510     2,668          -     20,178  

  Unappropriated accrued pension     2,969  (  2,940)         -         29  

  Allowance for uncollectible accounts     3,253        43          -      3,296  

  Remeasurements of defined benefit 

obligation     7,417         -  (   1,220)     6,197  

  Differences between the accounting 

treatment and tax regulations in right-

of-use assets     3,365  (    355)         -      3,010  

 Unrealized foreign exchange loss     8,503     2,975          -     11,478  

  Loss tax credit       187       259          -        446  

  Others     5,270  (    486)         -      4,784  

Subtotal  $ 63,343   $    36  ($  1,220)  $ 62,159  

－Deferred income tax liabilities:     
 Differences between the accounting 

treatment and tax regulations in 

depreciation on property, plant and 

equipment ($ 48,901)  $ 6,308   $      -  ($ 42,593) 

 Exchange difference on translation of 

foreign operations (   4,039)        -      1,383  (   2,656) 

 Land value increment tax (   1,417)        -          -  (   1,417) 

Subtotal ($ 54,357)  $ 6,308   $  1,383  ($ 46,666) 

Total   $ 6,344   $    163   
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  Year 2020  

   Recognized  Recognized in other   

  January 1   in profit or loss   comprehensive income   December 31  

Deferred tax assets:     

－Temporary differences:     
  Losses on foreign long-term equity 

investments  $ 13,380   $ 1,489   $      -   $ 14,869  

  Allowance for inventory valuation 

and obsolescence losses    15,929     1,581          -     17,510  

  Unappropriated accrued pension     4,979  (  2,010)         -      2,969  

  Allowance for uncollectible 

accounts     2,698       555          -      3,253  

  Remeasurements of defined 

benefit obligation     7,765         -  (     348)     7,417  

  Differences between the 

accounting treatment and tax 

regulations in right-of-use assets       403     2,962          -      3,365  

 Unrealized foreign exchange loss     6,494     2,009          -      8,503  

  Loss tax credit         -       187          -        187  

  Others     5,554  (    284)         -      5,270  

Subtotal  $ 57,202   $ 6,489  ($    348)  $ 63,343  

－Deferred income tax liabilities:     
 Differences between the 

accounting treatment and tax 

regulations in depreciation on 

property, plant and equipment ($ 56,557)  $ 7,656   $      -  ($ 48,901) 

 Exchange difference on translation 

of foreign operations (   6,266)        -      2,227  (   4,039) 

 Land value increment tax (   1,417)        -          -  (   1,417) 

Subtotal ($ 64,240)  $ 7,656   $  2,227  ($ 54,357) 

Total   $14,145   $  1,879   

 

4. Deductible temporary difference of unrecognized deferred tax assets   
 December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

Deductible temporary difference  $             6,784   $             6,755  

 

5. The Company and its subsidiaries ’, HOWIN and HOZUAN, profit -seeking 

enterprise annual income tax return up to 2019 had been examined by the 

tax authorities.  
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(31)  Earnings per share   

 Year 2021   

 

 Weighted average 

number of ordinary 

shares of outstanding 

 Earnings 

per share  

  Amount after tax    (shares in thousand)  (in dollars)  

Basic earnings per share    

 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 

of the parent  $ 341,823          277,326   $   1.23  

Diluted earnings per share    

 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 

of the parent    341,823          277,326   

 Assumed conversion of all dilutive    

   Employees’ compensation          -              106   
 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 

of the parent plus assumed conversion of all 

dilutive potential ordinary shares  $ 341,823          277,432   $   1.23  

  

 Year 2020   

 

 Weighted average 

number of ordinary 

shares of outstanding 

 Earnings 

per share  

  Amount after tax    (shares in thousand)  (in dollars)  

Basic earnings per share    

 Profit attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the parent  $ 286,094          254,625   $   1.12  

Diluted earnings per share    

 Profit attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the parent    286,094          254,625   

 Assumed conversion of all dilutive    

   Employees’ compensation          -              118   
 Profit attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the parent plus assumed 

conversion of all dilutive potential 

ordinary shares  $ 286,094          254,743   $   1.12  

 

1.  Weighted average number of ordinary shares of outstanding for 2020 

was calculated considering weighted average number of treasury stock.  

2.  Weighted average number of ordinary shares of outstanding for 2021 

was calculated considering weighted ave rage number of treasury stock.  

3.  The Corporation presumes that  the employees ’ compensation will  be 

settled in shares and the resulting potential shares will  be included in the 

weighted average number of shares outstanding used in the calculation of 

diluted earnings per share, if the shares have dilutive effect .  
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(32)  Supplemental cash flow information  

1. Investing activities with partial cash payments:  
  Year 2021   Year 2020  
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  $         1,987,588   $         1,477,562  

Add: Opening balance of payable equipment               91,933               212,870  

    Ending balance of prepayment for 
equipment               36,464               450,755  

    Ending balance of prepayment for 

construction                8,771                33,176  
    Acquisition of other noncurrent assets-

Lands              119,422                 2,905  

    Transferred to investment properties               30,387                     -  
Less: Ending balance of payable equipment (            208,380) (             91,933) 

    Opening balance of prepayment for 

equipment (            450,755) (            374,464) 
    Opening balance of prepayment for 

construction (             33,176) (             21,190) 

Cash paid during the year  $         1,582,254   $         1,689,681  

 

(33)  Changes in liabil ities from financing activities   

 Short-term borrowings  

 
 Short-term 

commercial papers 

payable  

 

 Lease liabilities  

 

 Long-term loans  

 

 Dividend 

payable   

 Liabilities from 

financing activities-

gross 
January 1, 2021  $2,088,753  

 
 $  600,000  

 
 $275,839  

 
 $7,245,965  

 
 $     -  

 
 $10,210,557  

Changes in cash 

flow from financing 
activities 

(   762,651) 
 

    660,000  
 
(  13,468) 

 
(   853,659) 

 
(307,469) 

 
(  1,277,247) 

Increase during the 

year 

          -  
 

          -  
 
        -  

 
          -  

 
 307,469  

 
     307,469  

Changes in other 

non-cash items 

          -  
 

          -  
 
    4,277  

 
          -  

 
       -  

 
       4,277  

Impact of changes in 
foreign exchange 

rate 

(     5,763)            -   (      11)  (     8,717)         -   (     14,491) 

December 31, 2021  $1,320,339  
 

 $1,260,000  
 
 $266,637  

 
 $6,383,589  

 
 $     -  

 
 $ 9,230,565  

  

 Short-term borrowings  

 
 Short-term 

commercial 

papers payable  

 

 Lease liabilities  

 

 Long-term loans  

 

 Dividend 

payable   

 Liabilities from 

financing activities-

gross 

January 1, 2020  $1,120,130  
 

$  560,000 
 
 $ 306,165  

 
 $6,829,932  

 
 $     -  

 
 $ 8,816,227  

Changes in cash flow 
from financing 

activities 

    958,281  
 

    40,000  
 
(   20,136) 

 
    409,727  

 
(509,913) 

 
     877,959  

Increase during the 
year 

          -  
 

       -  
 
         -  

 
          -  

 
 509,913  

 
     509,913  

Changes in other non-

cash items 

          -  
 

       -  
 
(   10,065) 

 
          -  

 
       -  

 
(     10,065) 

Impact of changes in 

foreign exchange rate 
     10,342          -   (      125)        6,306          -         16,523  

December 31, 2020  $2,088,753  
 

$600,000 
 
 $ 275,839  

 
 $7,245,965  

 
 $     -  

 
 $10,210,557  

 

7.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

(1)  Names of related parties and relationship  

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group 

 KAO FONG MACHINERY CO., LTD. 

(KAO FONG)  

 Associate  

 GLOBAL TECHNOS LTD. (GLOBAL)   Other related parties  

 Guo-Rong Shen   Other related parties (Chairman of the 

Company)  

 Main Drive Corporation   Other related parties  

 Taipei Gaohe Chungui Charity Foundation   Chairman of the Foundation is same as that 

of the Company.  
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(2)  Significant related party transactions  

1.Operating revenue 

   Year 2021   Year 2020  

Sale of goods   

 Associates  $             2,611   $             1,084  

 Other related parties                  286                11,842  

   $             2,897   $            12,926  

 

The Group sells to the aforementioned associates with standard sales price 

and conditions and payment term 30~60 days. Payment term for general  

customers is  90~180 days.  

2.Purchasing 

 
  Year 2021   Year 2020  

Purchase of goods   

 Associates  $                 -   $                98  

 Other related parties                    -                   127  

 

 
 $                 -   $               225  

 

Purchasing by the Group is conducted under standard pricing and conditions,  

and payment will  be done within 30~120 days after the acceptance of goods.  

3.Manufacturing overhead-processing cost  

   Year 2021   Year 2020  

 Associates  $            91,011   $            49,467  

 

Processing cost for the Group is conducted under standard processing price 

and conditions, and payment will  be done within 60~120 days after the 

acceptance of goods.  

4.Rental income 
  Year 2021   Year 2020  

Associates  $               600   $               600  

 

The rental  calculation of the aforesaid leasing subject is determined by 

reference of the neighborhood rental and the leasing surface.  The rental shall  

be paid every 30 days.  

5.Rental expense 
  Year 2021   Year 2020  

Associates  $                 -   $             1,259  

 

The rental  calculation of the aforesaid leasing subject is determined by 

reference of the neighborhood rental and the leasing surface.  The rental shall  

be paid by monthly.  

6.Receivables from related parties  

 

 
 December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

Accounts receivable:   

 Associates  $               792   $               291  
 Other related parties                   56                     -  
 Total  $               848   $               291  
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7.Payables to related parties  

 

 
 December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

Other payables:   

 Associates  $             7,727   $             6,930  

 Other related parties                  121                   314  

 Total  $             7,848   $             7,244  

 

8.Other non-current assets  

Subsidiaries of the Company hold agricultural  land that land alternation is 

not yet accomplished, hence it is temporarily registered under the Chairman ’s 

name of the parent Company. It  is agreed that  the Chairman cannot exercise 

any action to that agricultural land.  

9.Property transactions  

(1) Purchase of property transaction   
 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Purchase of property, plant 

and equipment   
Associates  $             8,566   $            11,899  

Other related parties                2,125                 1,619  
  $            10,691   $            13,518  

 

(2) Purchase of property transaction - outstanding balance (shown as other 

payables)   
 December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

Purchase of property, plant 

and equipment   
Associate  $               417   $               324  

Other related parties                    -                    80  
  $               417   $               404  

 

10.Leasing agreement-lessee 

(1) The Group leases building from associates,  the lease term is between 

years 2016 and 2021, and the rental for each year shall be paid by the end 

of that year.  

(2) Lease liabilities  

Interest expense  
  

 Year 2021   Year 2020  
 Associates  $                 -   $                27  

 

(3)  Key management compensation  
 

 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Other short-term employee benefits  $            36,072   $            47,898  

Post-employment benefits                1,191                 1,197  

Total  $            37,263   $            49,095  
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8.  ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERALS  
 Book value   

Pledged assets  December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  Purpose 

Financial assets at 

amortized cost 

 $             -   $        56,738  
Project guarantee, L/C 

Investments under Equity 

method           89,601            96,036  

Short-term borrowings 

Property, plant and 

equipment        8,708,110         5,974,351  

Long-term loans, Short-term 

borrowings 

Other non-current assets            1,515             1,515  Secured loans and Long-term loans  
 $     8,799,226   $     6,128,640   

 

9.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

1. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, Letter of Credit  issued but not used for 

purchasing of raw material and machinery equipment was NT$259,579,000 and 

NT$153,517,000, respectively.  

2. Capital  expenditure on contract signed but not occurred yet   

 December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

Property, plant and equipment  $         1,310,218   $           354,170  

 

3.  The subsidiary of the Company, HOWON POWERTRAIN CO., LTD., signed 

development incentive agreement with Jiangsu Province Huai ’an Economic 

Development Zone Administration, and obtained land use right subsidy of 

NT$38,369,000 (RMB 7,919,000), which was recognized in other non -current  

liabilities and will be recognized in revenue year by year according to the land 

use right of 50 years (from 2016 to 2065). Amounts of NT$689,000 and 

NT$680,000 were recognized in other income by the Group for 2021 and 2020,  

respectively.  

10.  LOSSES DUE TO MAJOR DISASTERS 

None.  

11.SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

None.  

12.  OTHERS 

(1)  Capital  management  

The Group’s managing capital is based on industry scale of operating 

business, taking into consideration of the industry future growth and product 

developments, and sets up an appropriate market share, according to that,  

plans corresponding capital expenditure. In addition to calculate demanded 

working capital based on financial  operating plans, and finally determine an 

appropriate cost  structure by considering operating income and cash flow 

arising from product competitivity.  

The Group monitors working capital through regularly reviewing the ratio of 

liabilities to assets.  The ratio of liabilities to assets of the Group for the years 

ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, is as follows:  
 

 December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

Total liabilities  $        12,359,491   $        11,944,132  

Total assets           21,103,619            18,351,175  

Ratio of liabilities to assets 58.57% 65.09% 
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(1)  Financial instruments  

1. Financial instruments by category   

 December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  

Financial assets 

  

  Financial asset at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 
  

    Investments for using designated 

equity method 
 $         186,312   $         184,922  

    Accounts receivable              

734,618  

             

727,869  

  Financial asset at amortized cost/loans 

and accounts receivable 
  

    Cash and cash equivalents              

947,910  

             

795,667  

    Financial assets at amortized cost               

33,904  

              

89,589  

    Notes receivable               

50,462  

              

18,537  

    Accounts receivable            

1,906,395  

           

1,487,210  

    Other receivables              

121,713  

             

113,358  

    Refundable deposits              3,617               7,646  

  $        3,984,931   $        3,424,798  

 

Financial liabilities 
  

  Short-term borrowings  $         1,320,339   $         2,088,753  

  Short-term notes & bills 

payable 

           1,260,000               600,000  

  Notes payable              921,500               431,512  

  Accounts payable            1,104,467               578,526  

  Other payables              864,227               437,713  

  Long-term loan (including the 

expiration within a year or an 

operating cycle)            6,383,589             7,245,965  
  $        11,854,122   $        11,382,469  

  Lease liabilities  $           266,637   $           275,839  

 

2. Financial risk management policies  

(1) The Group’s activities expose it  to a variety of financial  risks:  market 

risk (including foreign exchange risk,  interest  rate risk, and price risk),  

credit risk and liquidity risk.  

(2) Risk management is carried out by a central tre asury department  

(Group treasury).  Group treasury identifies,  evaluates and hedges 

financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units,  
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such as foreign exchange risk,  interest rate risk, credit risk and 

derivative and non-derivative financial instruments,  and investment of 

excess l iquidity.  

3. Significant financial risks and degrees of financial risks  

(1) Market risk  

Foreign exchange risk  

A. The Group operates internationally and is exposed to exchange rate 

risk arising from the transactions of the Company and its  

subsidiaries used in various functional currency, primarily with 

respect to the USD, EUR, JPY and RMB. Foreign exchange rate risk 

arises from future commercial transactions and recognized assets 

and liabili ties.  

B. The Group’s businesses involve some non-functional currency 

operations (the Company and part of subsidiaries ’ functional 

currency: TWD, part  of subsidiaries ’ functional currency: USD and 

RMB). The information on assets and l iabil ities denominated in 

foreign currencies whose values would be materially affected by the 

exchange rate fluctuations is as follows:  

(BLANK BELOW) 
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  December 31, 2021  
    Book value   Sensitivity analysis  

(Foreign currency: functional currency)  Foreign currency (in thousands)  

 

Exchange 

rate   (TWD)  

 Degree of variation  

 Effect of profit or loss   Effect of other comprehensive income         
Financial assets    

 
 

 

  Monetary items       

    USD：TWD  $  82,656  
     

27.68  
 $ 2,287,918  1%  $  22,879   $               -  

    JPY：TWD     71,941  
      

0.24  
      17,266  1%        173                   -  

    EUR：TWD      5,431  
     

31.32  
     170,099  1%      1,701                   -  

    RMB：TWD     24,972  
      

4.34  
     108,378  1%      1,084                   -  

    THB：TWD     35,131  
      

0.83  
      29,159  1%        292                   -  

  Investments under Equity method       

    USD：TWD  $     160  
     

27.68  
       4,429  1%  $       -   $              44  

Financial liabilities       

  Monetary items       

    JPY：TWD  $ 386,464  
      

0.24  
$   92,751  1%  $     928   $               -  

    USD：RMB     19,662  
      

6.37  
     543,572  1%      5,436                   -  

    USD：TWD      1,063  
     

27.68  
      29,424  1%        294                   -  

    EUR：TWD        651  
     

31.32  
      20,389  1%        204                   -  

    CHF：TWD      5,686  
     

30.18  
     171,603  1%      1,716                   -  
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  December 31, 2020  
    Book value   Sensitivity analysis  

(Foreign currency: functional currency)  Foreign currency (in thousands)  

 

Exchange 

rate   (TWD)  

 Degree of variation  

 Effect of profit or loss   Effect of other comprehensive income         
Financial assets    

 
 

 

  Monetary items       

    USD：TWD  $  73,873  
     

28.48  
 $ 2,103,903  1%  $  21,039   $               -  

    JPY：TWD     44,196  
      

0.28  
      12,375  1%        124                   -  

    EUR：TWD      7,375  
     

35.02  
     258,273  1%      2,583                   -  

    RMB：TWD      5,484  
      

4.38  
      24,020  1%        240                   -  

    USD：RMB        334  
      

6.45  
       9,436  1%         94                   -  

  Investments under Equity method       

    USD：TWD  $     122  
     

28.48  
 $     3,472  1%  $       -   $              35  

Financial liabilities       

  Monetary items       

    JPY：TWD  $ 127,798  
      

0.28  
 $    35,783  1%  $     358   $               -  

    USD：RMB     12,949  
      

6.45  
     365,822  1%      3,658                   -  

    USD：TWD        520  
     

28.48  
      14,810  1%        148                   -  

    EUR：TWD        103  
     

35.02  
       3,607  1%         36                   -  

    CHF：TWD      2,124  
     

32.31  
      68,626  1%        686                   -  
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C. Total exchange loss (including amounts realized and unrealized) 

arising from significant foreign exchange variation on the monetary 

items held by the Group for the years ended December 31,  2021 and 

2020, amounted to $64,914,000 and $80,837,000, respectively.  

Price risk  

A. The Group is exposed to price risk as the Group holds equity securities 

financial assets at fair value through profit  or loss and  financial assets 

at fair value through other comprehensive income. In order to manage 

price risk of the investments in equity instruments, the Group 

diversifies its portfolio and executing based on the limits set  by the 

Group.  

B. The Group’s primary investments are in equity instruments and open -

end funds issued by domestic companies,  which equity instruments 

price will  be affected due to uncertainties of future value on the 

investment targets. If that equity instruments price increase or 

decrease by 5% with all  other factors remain constant , gains or losses 

in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive 

income for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, increased of 

NT$9,316,000 and NT$9,246,000, respectively.  

Cash flow and fair value interest risk  

A. The Group’s interest risk primarily comes from long-term loans at 

floating rates, that the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.  

As of December 31,  2021 and 2020, the Group ’s loans at floating 

interest rates are denominated in New Taiwan Dollars,  US Dollars,  

Japanese Yen and CNY Dollars.  

B.  When the loans denominated in New Taiwan Dollars increase or 

decrease by 0.25% with all  other factors remain constant, profit  before 

tax for 2021 and 2020 decreased or increased NT$13,987,000  and 

NT$16,075,000, respectively, mainly caused by variations of the 

interest expenses from bank loans at  floating rates.  

C. When the loans denominated in CNY Dollars increase or decrease by 

0.25% with all  other factors remain constant, profit  before tax f or 2021 

and 2020 decreased or increased NT$1,657,000 and NT$1,282,000, 

respectively, mainly caused by variations of the interest expenses from 

bank loans at floating rates.  

D. When the loans denominated in US Dollars increase or decrease by 

0.25% with all  other factors remain constant, profit  before tax for 2021 

and 2020 decreased or increased NT$315,000 and NT$360,000,  

respectively, mainly caused by variations of the interest expenses from 

bank loans at floating rates.  

(2) Credit risk  

A. Credit risk refers  to the risk of financial loss to the Group arising 

from default  by the clients or counterparties of financial instruments 

on the contract obligations.  The main factor is that counterparties 

could not  repay in full  the accounts receivable and notes receiva ble 

based on the agreed terms, and the contract cash flows of debt 

instruments stated at  amortized cost and at fair value through other 

comprehensive income.  

B. For banks and financial institutions, only well -known rated parties 

with optimal credit  rating in domestic or overseas are acceptable by 

the Group, and the Group cooperates with couple of banks and 
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financial institutions in the meantime, instead of only a  single party to 

reduce credit  risk. Financial services or terms and conditions of loans 

provided by banks and institutions are according to the Group internal 

delegation of authority,  that  shall  be executed by approval  of the Board 

of Directors or delegated supervisors. Any paper that can only be 

signed with correspondent banks and financial institu tions, shall  be 

inspected by specialists of legal department or legal consultants to 

avoid legal risk. The Group periodically reviews the correspondent  

banks and financial institutions about their credit  ratings and service 

conditions, qualities and contac ts, and according to operating 

conditions, the Group periodically monitors to maintain reasonable 

credit  l imits and utilization of credit  l imits that ensures to satisfy the 

operational needs.  

C. The Group adopts the following assumptions under IFRS 9,  i f t here 

has been a significant  increase in credit  risk on that instrument since 

initial recognition:  

(a) When the contract  payments were past  due over 30 days based on 

the terms, there has been a significant increase in credit  risk on 

that instrument since in itial recognition.  

(b) Bond investments traded at Taipei  Exchange (“TPEx”) is 

recognized as low credit  risk when that  instruments in balance 

sheet are as investment grade rated by any of external  rating 

agencies.  

D. When independent credit  rating set  for a n investment target is  

downgraded by two levels, the Group ’s judgement on that investment  

has been a significant  in credit  risk.  

E. When the default  rate of an investment  target is more than 24.53%, the 

Group’s judgement on that investment has been a signi ficant in credit  

risk.  

F.  The Group adopts the assumptions under IFRS 9, the default  occurs  

when the contract payments are past due over 360 days.  

G. The Group classifies customers ’ accounts receivable in accordance 

with customer rating types.  The Group applies the modified approach 

using provision matrix to estimate expected credit  loss under the 

provision matrix basis.  

H. The following indicators are used to determine whether the credit 

impairment of debt instruments has occurred:  

(a) It  becomes probable that the issuer will  enter bankruptcy or other 

financial reorganization due to their  financial difficulties;  

(b) The disappearance of an active market for that financial  asset  

because of financial difficulties;  

(c) Default  or delinquency in interest or principal repayments;  

(d) Adverse changes in national or regional  economic conditions that 

are expected to cause a default .  

I .  The Group wrote-off the financial assets, which cannot be reasonably 

expected to be recovered,  after  initiat ing recourse procedur es. 

However, the Group will  continue executing the recourse procedures 

to secure their rights.  

 

J .  The Group used the forecast ability to adjust historical and timely 

information to assess the default  possibility of accounts receivable. As 
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of December 31,  2021 and 2020, the provision matrix is as follows:  
December 31, 2021  
  Expected loss rate   Total book value   Loss allowance  

 Not overdue  0.02%  $    2,291,574   $          416  

 Within 120 days  1.84%         277,969            5,114  

 121-240 days  12.67%          41,341            5,237  

 241-360 days  26.34%          55,521           14,625  

 Over 361 days  100%          27,316           27,316  

 Total    $    2,693,721   $       52,708  

 
December 31, 2020  
  Expected loss rate   Total book value   Loss allowance  

 Not overdue  0.01%  $    1,934,807   $          179  

 Within 120 days  0.38%         232,660              892  

 121-240 days  21.01%          56,123           11,794  

 241-360 days  77.05%          18,974           14,620  

 Over 361 days  100%          19,798           19,798  

 Total    $    2,262,362   $       47,283  

 

K. The Group recognizes impairment loss which the individual 

accounts receivable is expected to not be recovered upon objective 

evidence, the loss rate for the rest  of accounts receivable is built  

through historical and timely information and loss allowance of 

accounts receivable is assessed by the forecast  ability.  As of 

December 31, 2021 and 2020, the aforesaid cumulate d loss 

allowance of accounts receivable by individual assessment was 

NT$0 and NT$2,417,000, respectively.  

L. Movements in relation to the Group applying the simplified 

approach to provide loss allowance for accounts receivable are as 

follows:  
  Year 2021   Year 2020  
  Accounts receivable   Accounts receivable  

At January 1  $        49,700   $        45,852  

Provision for impairment loss            4,072             6,089  

Write-off uncollectible accounts                -  (          2,896) 

Effect of foreign exchange (          1,064)              655  

At December 31  $        52,708   $        49,700  

 

(3) Liquidity risk  

A. Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities of the 

Group and aggregated by Group treasury.  Group treasury mon itors 

rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it  

has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining 

sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities 

at all  times, so that the Group will  not violate th e relevant limits or 

terms of loans. Such forecasting takes into consideration the 

Group’s debt financing plans,  covenant compliance, compliance 

with internal balance sheet ratio targets and, if applicable external 

regulatory or legal requirements.  

B. The loan limits of NT$3,452,092,000 have not been util ized.  

C. The Group’s non-derivative financial  liabilities in the following 

table are categorized based on the maturity date and are analyzed 

based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the 
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contractual  maturity date.  The amounts disclosed in the table are the 

contractual undiscounted cash flows.  
December 31, 2021       

  Less than 

 Between 3 

months and     
Non-derivative financial liabilities 

 3 months   1 year  
 Between 
1 and 2 years  

 Between 
2 and 5 years  

 More than 
5 years   Total  

Short-term borrowings  $ 879,958   $ 448,050   $       -   $       -   $       -   $1,328,008  

Short-term notes & bills payable  1,260,000           -           -           -           -    1,260,000  
Notes payable    565,120     356,380           -           -           -      921,500  

Accounts payable  1,092,509      11,958           -           -           -    1,104,467  

Other payables    816,998      47,229           -           -           -      864,227  
Lease liabilities      4,486      13,457      16,652      30,631     275,310      340,536  

Other current liabilities      6,980      11,768           -           -           -       18,748  

Long-term loan (including maturity date 
within one year or one operating cycle) 

   214,014   1,025,890   1,565,805   2,247,735   1,755,166    6,808,610  

 
December 31, 2020       

  Less than 
 Between 3 
months and     

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

 3 months   1 year  

 Between 

1 and 2 years  

 Between 

2 and 5 years  

 More than 

 5 years   Total  
Short-term borrowings $ 1,805,189  $ 286,145   $       -   $       -   $       -   $2,091,334  

Short-term notes & bills payable    600,000           -           -           -           -      600,000  

Notes payable    247,677     183,835           -           -           -      431,512  
Accounts payable    476,772     101,755           -           -           -      578,527  

Other payables    330,046     107,667           -           -           -      437,713  

Lease liabilities      4,450      12,447      16,257      35,471     284,486      353,111  
Other current liabilities     65,178       5,310           -           -           -       70,488  

Long-term loan (including maturity date 

within one year or one operating cycle) 

 2,240,683   3,702,093   1,014,789   1,083,194     884,668    8,925,427  

 

(1)  Fair value information  

1. Valuation technique is adopted for financial and non -financial instruments 

fair value measurements; each degree is defined as  follows:  

The first level (Level 1): Fair value measurements are those derived from 

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical  assets 

or liabilit ies on the date of measurement. Active market 

indicates a market in which transaction for the as set or liability 

take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide 

pricing information on an ongoing basis. All of the Group’s  

investments fair value in listed stocks and active market 

derivatives are included.  

The second level (Level 2):  Fair value measurements are those derived 

from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 

that  are observable for the asset  or liabil ity either directly or 

indirectly.  

The third level (Level 3): Fair value measurements are those derived from 

inputs for the asset or liabil ity that are not based on observable 

market data.  The Group’s investments in inactive market 

derivatives are included.  

2. The Group’s financial instruments which are not at fair value 

measurements are including cash and cash equivale nts,  notes receivable,  

accounts receivable,  other receivables,  short -term borrowings,  notes 

payable, accounts payable,  and other payables,  book value of them are 

reasonable approximation of fair value.  

3.  The Group’s financial and non-financial instruments  measured at  fair value 

are basically categorized in nature,  characteristic and risk,  and degree of 
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assets and liabilities.  The information is as follows:  

(1) Category of assets and l iabilities by nature:  

December 31, 2021   Level 1   Level 2   Level 3   Total  

Assets   

  

Recurring fair value 
   

 

Financial assets at 

FVTOCI 

    

 -Equity securities  $ 126,799   $       -   $  59,513   $  186,312  

 -Accounts 

receivable 

         -     734,618           -      734,618  

Total  $ 126,799   $ 734,618   $  59,513   $  920,930  

 
December 31, 2020   Level 1   Level 2   Level 3   Total  

Assets   

  

Recurring fair value 
   

 

Financial assets at 

FVTOCI 

    

 -Equity securities  $ 120,506   $       -   $  64,416   $  184,922  

 -Accounts receivable          -     727,869           -      727,869  

Total  $ 120,506   $ 727,869   $  64,416   $  912,791  

 

(2) Valuation techniques and assumptions of fair value measurement 

adopted by the Group are as follows:  

Fair value inputs (i.e. as Level 1) adopted quoted market prices by the 

Group, which instruments are l isted by characteristic as follows:  
  Publicly traded stocks   Open-end funds  

 Quoted market prices 

 Closing price at 

valuation date  Net value at valuation date  

 

4. Transferring between Level 1 and Level 2 has not happened for the years 

of 2021 and 2020.  

5. Movements of Level 3 in the following table is  shown for the years of 

2021 and 2020:  

  Year 2021   Year 2020  

Balance, beginning of year  $            64,416   $            80,874  

Purchase in the current year                5,401                 6,503  

Profit (loss) recognized in 

other comprehensive income (             10,304) (             22,961) 

Balance, end of year  $            59,513   $            64,416  
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6. Sensitivity analysis of quantitative data and movements of material  

unobservable inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements, which valuation 

models are as follows:   
 December 31, 2021 
Fair value  

 Valuation 
technique  

 Material unobservable 
inputs  

 Range 
(Weighted average)  

 Relation of inputs and 
fair value  

Non-derivative equity instruments: 
  

 
 

Equity securities  $    25,516  

Comparable 

to listed 
companies 

pursuant to 

the 
Company 

Act 

Price-book ratio 

multiplier 
 $ 6,745  

The higher the 

multiplier, the higher 

the fair value. 

Stocks from 

venture capital 

companies 

      33,997  
Net assets 

valuation 

method 
Not applicable   39,924  Not applicable 

  
 December 31, 2020 

Fair value  

 Valuation 

technique  

 Material unobservable 

inputs  

 Range 

(Weighted average)  

 Relation of inputs and 

fair value  
Non-derivative equity instruments: 

  
 

 

Equity securities  $    24,492  

Comparable 

to listed 
companies 

pursuant to 

the 
Company 

Act 

Price-book ratio 

multiplier 
 $ 3,476  

The higher the 

multiplier, the higher 

the fair value. 

Stocks from 

venture capital 

companies 

      39,924  
Net assets 

valuation 

method 
Not applicable   39,924  Not applicable 

 

7.  Valuation model and parameter is  adopted by the Group with careful  

evaluation; however,  a result may be varied when using different valuation 

model or parameter.  For financial  assets and financial  liabilit ies 

categorized in Level 3, if valuation parameter changes, the effects of the 

current year profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows:  
    December 31, 2021  

   
 Recognized in profit or loss  

 Recognized in other 

comprehensive income  

  Inputs  

 

Change

s  

 Favorable 

change  

 Unfavorable 

change  

 Favorable 

change  

 Unfavorable 

change  

Financial assets       

  Equity 

instruments 

Market price 
price-book 

ratio 
±1%  $      -   $      -   $    595  ($    595) 

 
    December 31, 2020  

   
 Recognized in profit or loss  

 Recognized in other 

comprehensive income  

  Inputs  

 

Change

s  

 Favorable 

change  

 Unfavorable 

change  

 Favorable 

change  

 Unfavorable 

change  

Financial assets       

  Equity 

instruments 

Market price 

price-book 

ratio 
±1%  $      -   $      -   $    644  ($    644) 

 

(2)  Related information of COVID-19 epidemic 

Due to the impact of various epidemic prevention measures promoted by the 

government for the COVID-19 and the significant increase in international 
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shipping costs (listed as operating expenses),  the Group has taken 

countermeasures and continued to manage r elated matters. The plans have 

been carried on by the Group are as follows:  

1. According to the increase in international shipping costs, the trade term 

for the partial  customers have been adjusted to FCA (Free Carrier).  

2. As the government promotes polic ies of reducing cross-border movements 

of people and postponing the entering of migrant workers,  the Group has 

increased the employment of dispatch workers to supplement the 

manpower.  

13.OTHER DISCLOSURE 

(1)  Significant transactions information  

1. Loans to others: Please refer to table 1.  

2. Provision of endorsement and guarantees to others:  Please refer to table 2.  

3. Holding of marketable securities at the end of period (not including 

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures): Please refer to table 3.  

4. Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost  

exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital: None.  

5. Acquisition of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of paid -in 

capital or more: None.  

6. Disposal of real  estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of paid -in capital  

or more: None.  

7. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching NT$100 

million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.  

8. Receivables from related parties reaching NT$100 million o r 20% of paid-

in capital or more: None.  

9. Trading in derivative instruments undertaken during the reporting periods:  

None.  

10. Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting periods 

(transactions amount reaching NT$10 million or more): Please  refer to  

table 4.  

(2)  Information on investees  

Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including 

investees in Mainland China): Please refer to table 5.  

(3)  Information on investments in Mainland China  

1. Basic information: Please refer t o table 6.  

2. Significant transactions, pricing, payment terms and unrealized gains or 

losses,  either directly or indirectly through a third area, with investee 

companies in the Mainland Area: Purchase amounts of the year 2020 

between the Company and each investee in Mainland China are not 

reaching 10% of the Company total purchase amounts.  Purchasing is 

conducted to general  purchase price and is paid in advance.  
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(4)  Major shareholders information  

Major shareholders information: There is  no information that  any of  

shareholders holds 5% or more of common stock.  

14.SEGMENTS INFORMATION 

(1)  General information  

The Group operates business only in a single industry. The Group allocates 

resources and assesses performance of the Group as a whol e, has identified 

that  the Group has only one reportable segment.  

(2)  Measurement of segment information  

The Group evaluates performance of the operating segments based on a 

measure of profit  before tax.  

(3)  Information about segment income, assets and liabilities  

1. The segment information provided to the Chief Operating Decision -Maker 

for the 2021 reportable segments is as follows:   
 Year 2021  

  HOTA   Others   Write-off   Total  

Revenue     
 Revenue from external 

customers  $6,202,850   $ 483,514   $       -   $6,686,364  

 Inter-segment revenue      27,920     164,799  (  192,719)           -  

  Revenue-gross  $6,230,770   $ 648,313  ($ 192,719)  $6,686,364  

Segment profit before tax  $  401,001  ($  10,647)  $  13,446   $  403,800  

Segment profit before tax 

including:     
Interest expense  $   75,806   $  14,110   $       -   $   89,916  

Depreciation and 

amortization     542,501      38,879           -      581,380  

 Income tax expense      59,178       3,979           -       63,157  

 

2. The segment information provided to the Chief Operating Decision -Maker 

for the 2020 reportable segments is as follows:   
 Year 2020  

  HOTA   Others   Write-off   Total  

Revenue     
 Revenue from external 

customers  $4,763,245   $ 447,797   $       -   $5,211,042  

 Inter-segment revenue      23,995      76,481  (  100,476)           -  

  Revenue-gross  $4,787,240   $ 524,278  ($ 100,476)  $5,211,042  

Segment profit before tax  $  317,669  ($  13,495)  $  19,874   $  324,048  

Segment profit before tax 

including:     
Interest expense  $   94,946   $  13,345   $       -   $  108,291  

Depreciation and 

amortization     588,010      45,140           -      633,150  

 Income tax expense      31,575       6,913           -       38,488  

 

3. The Group’s reportable operating segment classifies business organization 

by category of operating companies.  

4. The Group major revenues are mainly from manufacture and sales of 

automobile, motorcycle,  agricultural  machinery, and gear,  shaft and 

various kinds of transmission components of machine tool.  

5.  The Group did not amortize income tax expense to the reportable operating 
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segment. The reported amount is consistent with that in statements for the 

Chief Operating Decision-Maker.  

6. Accounting policies for the operating segment is same as a summary of 

significant accounting policies mentioned in Note 4. Income for the 

Company operating segment is measured based on income before tax.  

(4)  Reconciliation for segment income (loss),  assets and liabili ties  

Sales between segments are carried out at arm ’s length. The revenue from 

external customers reported to the Chief Operating Decision -Maker is  

measured in a manner consistent with that  in the statement of comprehensive 

income. 

1. Reconciliat ions of total  segments revenues and total  continuing business 

units revenues for the year are as follows:   

 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Operating segment revenue  $         6,879,083   $         5,311,518  

Profit from continuing operations (            192,719) (            100,476) 

Total of consolidated operating 

revenue  $         6,686,364   $         5,211,042  

 

2. Reconciliations of segments net income before tax and continuing business 

units profit before tax for the year are as follows:   

 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Operating segment profit before tax  $           390,354   $           304,174  

(Profit) loss from continuing 

operations               13,446                19,874   

 $           403,800   $           324,048  

 

3.  The amounts provided to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker with respect 

to total assets are measured in a manner consistent with that  of the 

financial statements.  

4.  The amounts provided to the Chief Operating Decision -Maker with respect 

to total l iabilities are measured in a manner consis tent with that  of the 

financial statements.  

(5)  Information on products and services  

Revenue from external customers arising mainly from manufacture and sales 

of automobile, motorcycle, agricultural  machinery, and gear, shaft and 

various kinds of transmission components of machine tool, and etc. Details 

of revenue is as follows:   

 Year 2021   Year 2020  

Sale of goods  $         6,686,364   $         5,211,042  
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(6)  Geographical information  

Geographical information for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

is as follows:   

 Year 2021   Year 2020  

 Country  Revenue Non-current assets Revenue Non-current assets 

USA  $ 4,000,789   $   272,444   $ 3,720,533   $   286,739  

China      727,567       779,406       555,823       731,219  

Taiwan      348,210    12,336,182       241,746    11,458,149  

Others    1,609,798             -       692,940             -  

Total  $ 6,686,364   $13,388,032   $ 5,211,042   $12,476,107  

 

The Company geographical  revenues are calculated in countries. Non -current 

assets refer to property, plant and equipment, right -of-use assets, intangible 

assets, and other non-current assets, but not including investments in equity 

instruments, financial instruments, and deferred tax assets.  

(7)  Major customer information  

The Group has customers with which the sales revenues accounts for more 

than 10% of the operating revenue in the statement of comprehensive income 

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. The major customer 

information is as follows:   

 Year 2021   Year 2020   

 Amount   Segment   Amount   Segment  

Company A  $ 2,019,195   HOTA   $ 1,620,691   HOTA  

Company B    2,054,464   HOTA     1,837,012   HOTA  
 

 $ 4,073,659  
 

 $ 3,457,703  
 

 

(BLANK BELOW) 
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No

No

(Note 1) Creditor Borrower

General

ledger

account

Is a

Related

party

Maximum

outstanding

balance

during the

year ended

2021/12/31

Actual

amount

drawn down

Interest

rate (%)

Nature

of loan

(Note

4)

Amount

of

transactio

ns with

the

borrower

Reason for

short-term

financing

Allowance

for

doubtful

accounts Item Value

Limit on

loans

granted to a

single party

(Note 3)

Ceiling on

total loans

granted

(Note 2) Remarks

0

Hota Industrial

Manufacturing

Company

Limited

YUNG-CHIN

DEVELOP

FORGINGCO.,

LTD.

Other

receivables
N 14,338$         12,000$   12,000$         2.50 2 -$             

Purchase of

equipment
-$              -$       1,724,621$   3,449,242$   6

0

Hota Industrial

Manufacturing

Company

Limited

HOWON

POWERTRAIN

CO., LTD.

Other

receivables
Y 55,360           -          -                 2.00 2 -           

Purchase of

equipment
     -   - 1,724,621     3,449,242     5

0 Hota Industrial

Manufacturing

Company

Limited

CHIEN LI

INDUSTRIAL

CO., LTD.

Other

receivables
N 6,000             6,000       6,000             2.50 2 -           

Purchase of

equipment
     -   - 1,724,621     3,449,242     6

Note5: The transactions were eliminated when preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

Loans to Others

Year ended December 31, 2021

Table 1

              (2) For short-term financing.

Balance

at

December

31, 2021

Note6: The amount of ending balance was equal to the limit on loans as approved by the Board of Directors.

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Unless otherwise specified)

             (2)The subsidiaries are numbered in order starting from ‘1’.

Note 1: The numbers filled in for the loans provided by the Company or subsidiaries are as follows:

             (1)The Company is ‘0’.

Collaterals

Note 2: The ceiling on total loans to others is the Company net assets, the limit is 40% of the Company net assets.

Note 3: Limit on loans granted for a single party is 20% of the net assets of the Company.

Note 4: (1) For business transactions.
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Company name

Relationship

with the

endorser/

guarantor

(Note 2)

0 Hota

Industrial

Manufacturin

g Company

Limited

Howon(Whaian)

Automobile

Components

Company Limited

(2) 1,724,621$         304,480$          304,480$          298,833$    -$                   0.04 3,449,242$        Y N N

0 Hota

Industrial

Manufacturin

g Company

Limited

Wuxi Hota

Precision Gear Co.,

Ltd. (2) 1,724,621           193,760            193,760            193,760      -                     0.02 3,449,242          Y N N

Note 7：Y is required only for those who belong to the parent company of the listed counter to endorse the subsidiary company, those who belong to the subsidiary company to endorse the parent company of the listed counter,

                 the Company’s net assets.

                and those who belong to the mainland area endorsement.

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

Provision of Endorsements and Guarantees to Others

Year ended December 31, 2021

Table 2

Party being endorsed/guaranteed

                (2)A company in which the Company directly, and indirectly, holds more than 50% of the voting shares.

Note 3：The guarantees and endorsements for a single party should not exceed 20% of the Company’s net assets, The ceiling on total amount of endorsements/guarantees provided to others by the Company is 40% of

Note 4：The maximum balance of the endorsement guarantee for others in the current year.

Note 5：The ending balances of Howon automobile components and Wuxi Hoda’s endorsement guarantee are USD 11,000 thousand and USD 7,000 thousand, respectively, which are calculated based on the original exchange rate.

Note 6：Should enter the actual amount spent by the endorsed company within the range of the endorsed guarantee balance.

Note 1：The numbers filled in for the loans provided by the Company or subsidiaries are as follows:

                (1)The Company is ‘0’.

                (2)The subsidiaries are numbered in order starting from ‘1’.

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Unless otherwise specified)

Acutal

amount

drawn

down

（Note 6）

Amount of

endorsement

s/ guarantee

secured with

collateral

Ratio of

accumulated

endorsement/

guarantee amount

to net asset value

of the endorser/

Ceiling on total

amount of

endorsements/

guarantees

provided

（Note 3）

Provision of

endorsements/

guarantees by

parent company

to subsidiary

 (Note 7)

Provision of

endorsements/

guarantees by

subsidiary to

parent company

(Note 7)

Provision of

endorsements/

guarantees to

the party in

Mainland China

(Note 7) Remarks

                (7) Companies in the same industry provide among themselves joint and several security for a performance guarantee of a sales contract for pre-construction homes pursuant to the Consumer Protection Act for each other.

Oustanding

endorsement/

guarantee

amount at

December 31,

2021

                (3)A company which directly, and indirectly, holds more than 50% of the voting shares in the Company.

                (4)Companies in which the Company directly, and indirectly, holds more than 90% of the voting shares.

                (5)A company fulfilling its contractual obligations by providing mutual endorsements/guarantees for another company in the same industry or for joint builders for purposes of undertaking a construction project.

                (6)A company where all capital contributing shareholders make endorsements/guarantees for their jointly invested company in proportion to their shareholding percentages.

Note 2：Relationship between the endorser/guarantor and the party being endorsed/guaranteed is classified into the following seven categories; fill in the number of category each case belongs to:

                (1) A company with which the Company conducts business.

No

(Note 1)

Endorser/

Guarantor

Limit on

endorsements/

guaranteees

provided for a

single party

（Note 3）

Maximum

outstanding

endorsement/

guarantee

amount as of

December 31,
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Securities held by

Types of marketable

securities Name of marketable securities

Relationship with the securities

issuer Number of shares Book Value Shareholding ratio Fair Value

Hota Industrial

Manufacturing

Company Limited

Stock Shin Kong Financial Holding Co., Ltd.(2888)  -
Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income-current
2,957,688                  29,077$             -                              32,682$              

Hota Industrial

Manufacturing

Company Limited

Stock World Known MFG (Cayman) Limited  -
Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income-current
974,000                     4,740                 -                              16,732                

Hota Industrial

Manufacturing

Company Limited

Stock Hwa Fong Rubber Ind. Co., Ltd.(2109)
The chairman of the company is

the chairman of the company

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income-current
1,714,679                  46,566               -                              28,807                

Howin Precision

Company Limited
Stock Hwa Fong Rubber Ind. Co., Ltd.(2109)

The chairman of the company is

the chairman of the company

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income-current
428,669                     11,810               -                              7,202                  

Hozuan Investment

Company Limited
Stock Hwa Fong Rubber Ind. Co., Ltd.(2109)

The chairman of the company is

the chairman of the company

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income-current
2,462,854                  

58,130               
-                              

41,376                

150,323             126,799$            

Evaluation adjusted 23,524)(               

126,799$           

Hota Industrial

Manufacturing

Company Limited

Stock BMB Venture Capital Investment Corporation
The chairman of the company is

the chairman of the company

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income-noncurrent

3,314,182                  33,142$             9.28                            13,608$              

Hota Industrial

Manufacturing

Company Limited

Stock World Known MFG. Co., Ltd.   -
Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income-noncurrent

689,189                     7,832                 4.05                            11,076                

Hota Industrial

Manufacturing

Company Limited

Stock MAIN DRIVE CORPORATION
The chairman of the company is a

director of the company

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income-noncurrent

3,900,000                  39,000               10.78                          20,389                

Hota Industrial

Manufacturing

Company Limited

Ball card
TAICHUNG INTERNATIONALENTERTAINMENT

CORPORATION

The chairman of the company is a

director of the company

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income-noncurrent

-                                 3,010                 0.09                            9,240                  

Howin Precision

Company Limited
Stock

Hoga Industry Co., Ltd. The chairman of the company is a

director of the company

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income-noncurrent

508                            6,766                 7.93                            5,200                  

89,750               59,513$              

Evaluation adjusted 30,237)(               

59,513$             

                  pledges, and the circumstances of restricted use.

Note 1：The securities mentioned in this table refer to the stocks, bonds, beneficiary certificates and securities derived from the above items that fall within the scope of the International Financial Reporting Standard No. 9 “Financial Instruments”.

Note 2：If the securities issuer is not a related party, this column is not required.

Note 3：If measured by fair value, please fill in the book value of column B after fair value evaluation adjustments and deduct accumulated impairment; if it is not measured by fair value, please fill in the original acquisition cost or amortized cost after

Note 4：The listed securities have users who are restricted due to the provision of guarantees, pledged loans, or other agreed upon agreement. The remarks column should indicate the number of guarantees or pledged shares, the amount of guarantees or

                  deduction of accumulated impairment in the book value column B The book balance.

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

Holding of marketable securities (not including subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)

December 31, 2021

Table 3

RemarksGeneral ledger account

As of December 31, 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Unless otherwise specified)
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No

(Note

1) Company name Counterparty

Relationship

(Note 2)

General ledger

account Amount Transaction terms

Percentage of consolidated

total operating revenues or

total assets

(Note 3) Remarks

0 　Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited HOTATECH INC. 1 Sales 27,920$   
According to the general priceand conditions, the

paymentwill be collected within 180 days after shipment.
0.42% Note 4、5

　Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited HOTATECH INC. 1
Account

receivable
12,017     Payment is received within 90 days after shipment. 0.06% Note 4、5

0 　Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited HOTATECH INC. 1
Commission

expense
33,730     

Based on the sales of specificmodels shipped by the

parent company to specific customers, calculated

according to acertain percentage.

0.50% Note 4、5

0 　Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited

HOWON

POWERTRAIN CO.,

LTD.

1 Sales 24,982     

According to the general price and conditions, payment

will be made within 30~180 days after acceptance of each

different model.

0.37% Note 4、5

0 　Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited

HOWON

POWERTRAIN CO.,

LTD.

1
Account

receivable
17,127     

Payment will be made within 30~180 days after acceptance

of each different model.
0.08% Note 4、5

0 　Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited
HOWIN PRECISION

CO., LTD.
1

Processing

costs
62,754     

According to the general processing price and conditions,

payment will be made within 120 days after acceptance.
0.94% Note 4、5

0 　Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited
HOWIN PRECISION

CO., LTD.
1

Accounts

payable
30,790     Payment within 120 days after acceptance. 0.15% Note 4、5

0 　Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited
Hefu Construction

Co., Ltd.
1

Other

receivables
34,284     According to the agreement of both parties. 0.16% Note 4、5

Note 1：The numbers filled in for the transaction company in respect of inter-company transactions are as follows:

                (1) Parent company is ‘0’.

                (2)The subsidiaries are numbered in order starting from ‘1’.

Note 2：Relationship between transaction company and counterparty is classified into the following three categories:

                (1)Parent company to subsidiary.

Transaction

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting period

For the year ended December 31, 2021

Table 4 (In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Unless otherwise specified)

                (2)Subsidiary to parent company.

                (3)Subsidiary to subsidiary。

Note 3：Regarding percentage of transaction amount to consolidated total operating revenues or total assets, it is computed based on period-end balance of transaction to consolidated total assets for balance sheet accounts and based on accumulated transaction amount for the year to

Note 4：Transaction amounts account for at least NT$10 million.

Note 5: The transactions were eliminated when preparing the consolidated financial statements.

                consolidated total operating revenues for income statement accounts.
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As at December

31, 2021

As at December

31, 2020

Number of

Shares

Percentage

(%) Book Value

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company

Limited
Hezuan Investment Taiwan Investment activities 167,190$             167,190$             25,221,000       100.00 283,620$        5,485)($                       5,485)($                      Subsidiaries(Note 4)

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company

Limited
CAPTAIN HOLDING CO., LTD. Seychelles Holding company 326,073               326,073               10,602,990       100.00 151,788          6,861)(                         6,861)(                        Subsidiaries(Note 4)

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company

Limited
HOTATECH,INC. USA

Sell variuos precision gears for

automobiles
173,638               173,638               530,200            100.00 229,841          16,428                       16,428                      Subsidiaries(Note 4)

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company

Limited
HOWIN PRECISION CO., LTD. Taiwan

Manufacturing of internal

combustion engines and piston rings

for automobiles and motorbikes,

andwholesale of hardware parts and

metalparts

41,450                 41,450                 7,305,147         61.05 81,141            3,685)(                         2,250)(                        Subsidiaries(Note 4)

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company

Limited
Juda Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. Taiwan

Manufacturing and selling various

precision gears and shafts for

automobiles

5,000                   5,000                   500,000            83.33 4,983              13)(                              11)(                             Subsidiaries(Note 4)

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company

Limited
Hefu Construction Co., Ltd. Taiwan

Construction and investment

development of residences,

apartments and mixed residential

office buildings

68,000                 -                          68,000,000       50.00 67,746            507)(                            254)(                           Subsidiaries(Note 4)

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company

Limited
KAO FONG MACHINERY CO., LTD. Taiwan

Manufacturing and trading of

various machine tools, plastic

injection molding machines, hand

tools and mechanical equipment, etc.

11,400                 11,400                 838,878            0.78 14,998            36,126)(                       281)(                           
Invested company evaluatedby

equity method(Note 3)

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company

Limited

TAIWAN PYROLYSIS & ENERGY

REGENERATION CORP.
Taiwan

Removal, storage and treatment

ofgeneral and hazardous industrial

waste.

12,500                 12,500                 375,000            25.00 -                      -                                 -                                
Invested company evaluatedby

equity method(Note 1)

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company

Limited
TAKAWA SEIKI, INC. USA Machinery traders and agents. 3,607                   3,607                   120,000            40.00 4,437              2,686                         1,074                        

Invested company evaluatedby

equity method

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company

Limited
LING WEI CO., Ltd. Taiwan Hardware wholesale industry. 36,338                 24,413                 3,633,750         45.00 44,396            8,820                         3,969                        

Invested company evaluatedby

equity method

Hezuan Investment KAO FONG MACHINERY CO., LTD. Taiwan

Manufacturing and trading of

various machine tools, plastic

injection molding machines, hand

tools and mechanical equipment, etc.

187,141               187,141               16,501,826       15.28 253,848          36,126)(                       5,518)(                        
Invested company evaluatedby

equity method(Note 2、3)

HOWIN PRECISION CO., LTD. KAO FONG MACHINERY CO., LTD. Taiwan

Manufacturing and trading of

various machine tools, plastic

injection molding machines, hand

tools and mechanical equipment, etc.

677                      677                      49,471              0.05 885                 36,126)(                       17)(                             
Invested company evaluatedby

equity method(Note 2、3)

HOTATECH,INC. UNISON INVESTMENT CO., INC. USA
Sell variuos precision gears for

automobiles
82,236                 82,236                 236,341            100.00 58,936)(            -                                 -                                

Second-tier subsidiary

(Note 2)

(Unless otherwise specified)

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

Initial investment amount Shares held as December 31, 2021

Information on Investees (not including investees in Mainland China)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

Table 5 (In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Investor

Investee

（Note 1、2） Location Main business activities

Net profit (loss) of

the investee for the

year ended

December 31, 2021

Investment income

(loss) recognized

by the Company for

the year ended

December 31, 2021

Note 4：The transactions were eliminated when preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Remarks

Note 1：The book value of the long-term investment is the balance after the impairment loss of 3,736 thousand has been recognized.

Note 2：Recognize investment gains and losses through each subsidiary.

Note 3：KAO FONG MACHINERY CO., LTD.is jointly held by Hota Industrial Manufacturing CO., LTD. And Howin Precision Company Limited and Hozuan investment Company Limited.

            Its total shareholding ratio is 16.11%, and the investment loss recognized by the Group totals 5,816 thousand.
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Reitted to

Mainland

China

Remitted

back to

Taiwan

Wuxi Hota Precision Gear

Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and sell

various of precision

gears for automobiles

166,080$             1 160,544$                          -$                -$                160,544$                          14,502)($                100.00 14,502)($                          30,838$                 -$                                        Note 2、4、5

HOWON POWERTRAIN

CO., LTD.

Manufacturing and

selling of automobile

gearboxes and gears.

293,408               2 293,408                            -                  -                  293,408                            9,712)(                    100.00 9,712)(                              163,806                 -                                          Note 2、4、5

Note 1：Investment methods are classified into the following three categories:

(1) Directly invest in a company in Mainland China.

(2) Investments through a holding company registered in a third region.

(3) Others

Note 2：Wuxi Hoda Precision gear Company Limited the paid-in capital is US$6,000,000, accumulated amount of remittance from Taiwan to Mainland China as of December 31, 2020 is US$5,800,000.

Note 3：Howon(Whaian)automobile components Company Limited the paid-in capital is US$10,600,000,accumulated amount of remittance from Taiwan to Mainland China as of December 31, 2020 is US$10,600,000.

Note 4：Paid-in capital was converted at the exchange rate of NTD 27.68: USD 1 prevailing on December 31, 2021.

Note 5: The profit and loss of the Shanghai Development Investment Company is the share of the profit and loss of the subsidiary and the grandson company recognized in the financial statements audited by accountants during the same period.

Accumulated amount of

remittance from Taiwan

to Mainland China as of

December 31, 2021

Investment

amount

approved by the

Investment

Ceiling on

investments in

Mainland China

imposed by the

Hota Industrial

Manufacturing Company

Limited

 $                            453,952  $             453,952  $                 5,173,863

Note 1：According to the limit stipulated in the letter No. 006130 of the Securities and Futures Commission (90) of the SFC of the Ministry of Finance of the Ministry of Finance on November 16, 2001.

Note 2：Accumulated amount of remittance from Taiwan to Mainland China as of December 31, 2021 is US$16,400,000.

Hota Industrial Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

Information on Investment in Mainland China

For the year ended December 31, 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Unless otherwise specified)

Ownership held

by the Company

(direct or

indirect)

Investment income

(loss) recognized by

the Company for the

year ended December

31, 2021

Book value of

investment in

Mainland China

as of December

31, 2021

Table 6

Invested Amount

Investee in Mainland China Main business activities Paid-in capital

Investment method

（Note 1）

Accumulated amount of

remittance from Taiwan

to Mainland China as of

January 1, 2021

Accumulated amount of

investment income

remitted back to Taiwan

as of December 31, 2021 Remarks

Accumulated amount of

remittance from Taiwan

to Mainland China as of

December 31, 2021

Net income of

investee for the

year ended

December 31,

2021


